
In all its endeavours, Utkarsh imbibes 
the three pillars of a sustainable institution -
Culture, Process and Growth 
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It gives me a great sense of satisfaction and pride on presenting the 

7th Annual Report of the company. The company has shown steady 

progress on all fronts throughout its journey of six and half years and 

hence the company has been able to establish itself as a reputed 

institution in the microfinance space on all financial and non-financial 

parameters. 

The FY 2015 -16 was marked very special in the journey of Utkarsh 

with many far reaching developments. The company kept its focus 

intact on the Vision, Mission and Values and achieved the same with 
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a responsible, sustainable and scalable institution approach. Realising the Dream of the stated 

Vision of the company for serving one million households through a range of socially oriented 

products and services by 2016 was the landmark achievement as we closed the books of accounts 

on March 31, 2016. 

Another landmark achievement for the company was to bag the 'in-principle' licence approval for 

'Small Finance Bank' from Reserve Bank of India (RBI). Under its guidelines for Licensing of 'Small 

Finance Banks' issued on November 27, 2014 by RBI, it approved the licence for 10 institutions, 8 

being NBFC-MFIs and Utkarsh being the 'baby of the batch' in terms of vintage. A timeline of 18 

months has been specified by RBI for the transition from NBFC-MFI to set up the Small Finance 

Bank, to which the company is confident of achieving well in advance. Utkarsh is the only licencee 

from its core geography and also Utkarsh would be the first Bank to have its headquarter (other 

than RRBs and Cooperative Banks) in this part of the country. The geography is less penetrated 

and hence gives immense opportunity to serve the different segments of the society with our 

bouquet of services.

The microfinance space has been seeing landscape changing developments currently, very well 

supported by Reserve Bank of India and Government of India as well. RBI granted 23 banking 

licences to new players - two were given universal banking licences (on April 2, 2014) Bandhan, a 

microfinance company, being one of them; 11 were sanctioned Payments Banks licences (August 

19, 2015) and 10 were sanctioned licences for Small Finance Banks (September 16, 2015). The 

Central Government also approved conversion of MUDRA Ltd., an NBFC, into MUDRA Bank as a 

wholly owned subsidiary of SIDBI, alongwith setting up of a Credit Guarantee Fund for loans 

 Team Utkarsh celebrating milestones of success
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disbursed under the Pradhan Mantri Micro Units Development Refinance Agency (MUDRA) 

Yojana. 

Micro Finance Institutions Network (MFIN), the Self-Regulatory Organization (SRO) appointed by 

RBI, also came up in a big way and ramped up its activity on Surveillance, Grievance Redressal, 

Dispute Resolution, Data Collection and Training and Knowledge Dissemination fronts. As of 

March 31, 2016, there were 56 NBFC-MFIs, all of whom have either received or applied for NBFC-

MFI license registration from RBI, covering more than 32.5 Mn clients through 9,669 branches pan 

India. A total of `618,600 Mn of loans were disbursed during the FY 2015-16 with around `532,330 

Mn of GLP as at the close of the year. The client base of the MFIs has increased 44% over the 

previous financial year, expanding its reach rapidly across all the regions of the nation.

Sa-dhan, which had also got SRO status from RBI, collaborated with MFIN and other stakeholders 

like Small Industries Development Bank of India (SIDBI), International Finance Corporation (IFC) 

and Micro-Credit Ratings International Ltd (M-CRIL) to come out with the revised (2nd edition) 

Industry Code of Conduct. The sector is now witnessing collaborative efforts to bring higher levels 

of standards and maturity for a progressive tomorrow.

The company also increased its visibility by organizing its first ever conference in Varanasi on 

Microfinance for the academia stakeholders of the sector. The conference brought various 

stakeholders like Small Industries Development Bank of India (SIDBI), Micro Finance Institutions 

Network (MFIN), Microfinance Association Uttar Pradesh (UPMA), Grameen Foundation, 

MicroSave and various Universities, Colleges, Institutes and HR Agencies together to discuss on 

the changing paradigm of Micro Finance Institutions, from Alternate finance to mainstream 

Banking. The objective of the conference was to increase awareness on Microfinance Sector to the 

academia stakeholders, especially for the benefit of the students' fraternity with aspirations to work 

for the sector. The need of long term association with serious internships, exposure visits, relevant 

course curriculum with industry expert interaction and hence a meaning placement was discussed 

in detail.

The year 2015 -16 has been very enriching for the company on different counts. The company 

could achieve quality growth in terms of outreach, portfolio, profitability, operational efficiency and 

net-worth. 

The base of 10,10,208 Active clients as on March 31, 2016 has grown from the base of 6,01,465 

active clients as at March 31, 2015. The cumulative disbursement figures almost doubled from 

`18,166 Mn till Mar 31, 2015 to `35,300 Mn till Mar 31, 2016.

The company expanded in new geographies of its 10 operational States of Uttar Pradesh, Bihar, 

Jharkhand, Delhi-NCR, Uttarakhand, Haryana, Himachal Pradesh, Maharashtra, Madhya Pradesh 

and Chhattisgarh by adding 87 new branches (81 JLG Branches & 6 MEL Branches) in 33 new 

districts during this year. 
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At the close of FY 2015-16, the microfinance outreach of the company i.e. the JLG business stood 

at an outstanding of `13,433.4 Mn, thereby, making a total portfolio of `14,324.8 Mn along with 

MEL and AHL business. 

Micro Enterprises Loans (MEL), the 

company's second business vertical 

stood at an outstanding of `871.2 Mn, 

with a client base of 14,326 active 

clients. The pilot of Affordable 

Housing Loan (AHL), company's third 

bus iness  ver t i ca l  s tood  a t  an  

outstanding of `20.2 Mn, with a client 

base of 72 active clients.

The Company has achieved a PBT of 

`611.1 Mn for the year ended March 

31, 2016. The remarkable feat was achieved with excellent portfolio quality, reduction in operating 

cost, lower cost of fund, efficient cash management practices, steady growth and improvement in 

processes. The PBT increased from `264.8 Mn in FY 2015 to `611.1 Mn in FY 2016. 

Operational efficiency has always been the critical parameter for the company and to this end, the 

company saw operating expense ratio decreasing from 7.7% in March 2015 to 7.2% in March 

2016, in spite of the company opening more than 87 branches during the FY.

This is the result of passion and untiring hard work put in by each and every member of Utkarsh 

family which consisted of 2,636 members as on March 31, 2016, against 1753 members as on 

March 31, 2015.

The company has now its rating provided by ICRA as M1 (upgraded from M2+) indicating that the 

company's ability to manage its microfinance activities in a sustainable manner is the highest. 

CARE has also assigned 'A-' rating for the company's Bank Loans & NCD rating. The company 

received 'Special Jury Award for Serving MSMEs', by Chamber of Indian Micro Small & Medium 

Enterprises (CIMSME) under nomination for 'NBFC Excellence Award  2015'. 

In the ensuing Financial Year, the Company plans to launch the Small Finance Bank operations. 

To begin with it would open around 125 branches all across its current operational states, with 

more than 65% branches in Uttar Pradesh and Bihar. The other states where Utkarsh will have 

presence are Madhya Pradesh, Maharashtra, Delhi-NCR, Haryana, Uttarakhand, Jharkhand, 

Chhattisgarh and Himachal Pradesh.

The company plans to have around 125 banking branches alongwith around 325 microfinance 

focus satellite offices at the time of starting its operations as a Small Finance Bank.

Board Member interaction with Senior Management
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Given the new landscape for the company, the Vision and Mission of the company has been 

revisited and redefined suitably, keeping the Core Values intact. Even in the changed landscape the 

core philosophy of the company shall remain the same, i.e. to believe and focus on Culture and 

Process and hence achieving Growth as an outcome.

The company strives to achieve greater levels of customer services for achieving customer delight 

rather than just customer satisfaction. The company has been able to build brand loyalty in its core 

geography and hence has plans to extend the banking services mainly in the current operational 

geographies (barring a few minor exceptions). 

Upscaling the existing mechanism for timely identification of customer queries and concerns, 

coordinating for speedy redressal of concerns, actively looking for process improvement 

opportunities, scientifically tracking customer satisfaction and facilitating implementation of 

customer friendly automation, the company believes 'Customer Delight' is at the core of its 

existence and customer must be served proactively beyond their expectations. 

To keep in line with the changing economic environment and rather to leap ahead, the company 

has further reviewed its Risk Management System. The company believes in strengthened and 

absolute functional autonomy of internal control systems so that the functioning of the company is 

proper and all the regulatory and other standards are met with. The other control functions like the 

Internal Audit Department and the Vigilance and Security Department of the company have also 

been suitably contributing towards this. 

On the technology front, the company moved its field operations from a mobile based platform to 

a tab based platform with enhanced features. For the Small Finance Bank (SFB) transition also, the 

company is in the process of developing altogether a new kind of Core Banking Solution with 

focus on its user friendly and fast processing features. 

Growing ahead, the need is always to have adequate and highly motivated team members with 

right skill set. The company has been ensuring suitable recruitment and skill development training 

in place. 

With the changing landscape from NBFC-MFI to SFB, the company would be almost doubling its 

employee strength in a span of another 6 to 12 months. Accordingly, the grades of the company as 

an NBFC-MFI are being rationalized to meet the patterns of the Banking sector. 

With the prospecting new roles and responsibility, especially for the current team members, much 

focus is being given to their skill development and capacity building through various training and 

workshop initiatives. All the existing employees have been engaged in this transition process, 

especially the HR process through various surveys, workshops, Town Hall meetings with active 

participation of Top Management. Especially for all the Town Hall Meeting, I personally attended 

the discussions and had fruitful interactions with all the employees of the company.
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During the Town Hall Meetings and other such workshops for the transition, the Big Contribution of 

all the employees individually and collectively have been well recognized to cherish the Proud 

moment of securing SFB in-principle approval from RBI. It has been emphasized that the current 

Mission, Vision and Values of the company shall continue to be in the same direction. In other 

words, there would not be any change in the core DNA of the institution i.e. 'Culture, Process  and 

Growth' would continue to be our Mantra.

As we know that during a transition phase, cultural churns and employees aspirations are critical 

elements to be taken care of very delicately. Towards this, during all such interactions with 

employees, it has been highlighted and reiterated that all employees shall be “the Bank Employee” 

with no adverse change in remuneration. All Employees to be retained without any exception. In 

fact, the possibility of enhanced roles and profiles shall be offered to all employees through 

Internal Job Posting during and also subsequently to the transition phases, thereby offering much 

superior career path.  

One big transition exercise would be the re-alignment of Grades to mirror mainstream banking 

structure, which has been discussed with employees in details. The Leave rules / holidays and 

other such benefits would also be aligned with Banking post launch. 

Given the confidence obtained from these interactions, I take this opportunity to reiterate that each 

and every member of Utkarsh Team has been and will remain committed to high standards of 

Utkarsh Culture and Utkarsh Process, which would help achieve Growth in all spheres of Utkarsh 

endeavors. 

I take this opportunity to convey my gratitude to each and every stakeholder of Utkarsh for their 

great all time guidance, patronage and continued support to the company in serving the 

underprivileged, underserved and unbanked segments of the society in a scalable, sustainable and 

responsible manner. 

With all your guidance and continued support, the company would strive to be the banking and 

financial institution of choice in the coming years. The mission would be to provide affordable and 

accessible banking and financial services which are process centric, technology supported and 

client focused resulting in reliable, scalable and sustainable institution enabling socioeconomic 

change. The core values i.e. DNA of the company would continue to be the same with greater zeal 

and enthusiasm in the changing landscape.

With best regards,

Govind Singh
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Introduction:

Utkarsh Micro Finance Pvt. Ltd. (Utkarsh) continues to be a Non-Deposit taking NBFC  MFI with its 

Registered and Corporate Office in Varanasi (Uttar Pradesh). Starting the microfinance operations 

way back in September 2009, the Company had aimed and attained the stated Vision of “Serving 

one million households through a range of socially oriented products and services by 2016.” The 

company had 10,10,208 active client base as at March 31, 2016, which is over 1.66 times the active 

client base of 6,08,288 as on March 31, 2015. 

The company believes that every day a loan is disbursed, it is actually taking the stepping stone in 

“Realising Dreams” (theme of Utkarsh Logo) of a household. The belief got strengthened with a 

special pride and joy in March 2016 when the company realised its stated dream Vision. The Vision 

is encompassed with the mission to Support underprivileged and underserved segments by 

providing financial and non-financial services through a socially responsible, sustainable and 

scalable institution.

The 'in-principle' approval of 'Small Finance Bank' Licence from Reserve Bank of India (RBI) further 

reaffirmed team Utkarsh efforts in realising the dreams of its clients.

Under its guidelines for licensing of 'Small Finance Banks' (issued dated November 27, 2014), RBI 

granted the 'in-principle' approval on September 16, 2015 to Utkarsh for setting up a 'Small Finance 

Bank'. A timeline of 18 months has been specified by RBI for the same.

During the year, the company expanded in new states of Chhattisgarh and Jharkhand and also in 

the new geographies of other existing 8 states of Uttar Pradesh, Bihar, Maharashtra, Madhya 

Pradesh, Delhi-NCR, Uttarakhand, Himachal Pradesh and Haryana. As at the close of the year the 

company had presence in 98 districts of these 10 states through 342 branches catering to more 

than 1 million clients. 

The company provides loans ranging from `6,000 to `40,000 under the Group (Joint Liability) 

Model for income generation purposes like purchase of milch animals, setting up and expansion of 

petty shops, small businesses, petty trading etc. It also caters to the 'missing middle' space by 

providing loan under its Micro Enterprises Loan (MEL) segment ranging between `50,000 to 

`300,000. The company started a pilot of Affordable Housing Loan (AHL) during the year, under 

which it provides loans from `100,000 to `500,000 basically for repair, renovation and expansion of 

the houses.

Macro Environment 

The micro finance industry grew by 84% in FY 2015-16 as compared to 61% in FY 2014-15. The 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
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portfolio growth has been fairly broad based. The aggregate Gross Loan Portfolio (GLP) of MFIs 

grew to around `532,330 Mn as at the close of FY 2015-16. The MFIs provided micro-credit to over 

32.5 Mn borrowers in FY 2015-16, the annual disbursement increasing by 44% over the last fiscal. 

MFIs have a network of 9,669 branches across 30 States / Union Territories. Geographically, GLP in 

South stood at 35% while East accounted for 15%. North and West accounted for 25% each.

The year saw development triggers which is changing the landscape of the Microfinance sector. 

The Reserve Bank of India has granted 'in-principle License' to 10 entities (8 NBFC MFIs, 1 NBFC & 1 

Local Area Bank) on September 16, 2015 to set up 'Small Finance Bank' under its guidelines for 

Licensing of 'Small Finance Banks' issued on November 27, 2014. A timeline of 18 months has 

been specified by RBI for setting up the Small Finance Bank. The Cabinet approved conversion of 

MUDRA Ltd, an NBFC, into MUDRA Bank as a wholly owned subsidiary of SIDBI and also setting 

up of a Credit Guarantee Fund for loans disbursed under the Pradhan Mantri Micro Units 

Development Refinance Agency (MUDRA) Yojana. 

Operational Performance 

Taking forward the growth momentum of previous years, the outreach of the company grew to 

newer operational geographies in 10 states viz. Uttar Pradesh, Bihar, Jharkhand, Delhi-NCR, 

Uttarakhand, Himachal Pradesh, Haryana, Maharashtra, Madhya Pradesh and Chhattisgarh. The 

total districts being covered in 10 states grew to 98. The branch network expanded to 342 [321 JLG 

Branches and 21 MEL Branches with 2 MEL Branches having Affordable Housing Loan pilot 

business) for serving more than 1 Mn active clients. The Company opened 87 new branches (81 

JLG Branches and 6 MEL Branches with AHL business at 2 MEL Branches) during the FY 2015-16.

Microfinance under JLG Model 

The year 2015-16 had brought in many landmark achievements, especially for the microfinance 

outreach activities of the company. The company had 9,95,810 active women entrepreneurs in its 

Joint Liability Groups (JLG) book at the end of the FY 2015-16. Geographically, the company 

entered into 2 new states of Chhattisgarh and Jharkhand and 33 new districts across its other 

existing 8 states also. Starting from the base of 240 JLG branch network as at the close of last 

financial year, the company expanded to 321 JLG branches in 98 districts spread over 10 states in 

the Country. The portfolio outstanding of `10,000 Mn was crossed during this FY 2015-16 with 

portfolio quality as excellent with negligible PAR. The JLG loan outstanding business as on March 

31, 2016 stood at an outstanding of `13,433.4 Mn against `7,281 Mn as on March 31, 2015, with 

almost 85% increase on a year to year basis. 

Micro Enterprises Loan (MEL)

The Company expanded from the base of 15 MEL branches as at the close of last FY to 21 

branches as on March 31, 2016, serving 14,326 active loan clients with portfolio outstanding of 

`871.2 Mn. Further expansion of MEL Loans as Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME) 

segment loans is proposed which will be focusing on high ticket size loans upto `25 Lac. 



9

The change in MEL loans is envisaged, especially in context of the transition to Small Finance 

Bank, thereby increasing its focus to the Missing Middle section of the society.

Affordable Housing Loan (AHL)

The company forayed into affordable housing loan business by starting pilot at 2 of its MEL 

branches at Nagpur and Varanasi. In India, shelter is still beyond the reach of millions and lack of 

financial resources is one of the major reasons behind this. Driven by the belief that housing is a 

productive asset and a better living condition further improves the productivity of an individual / 

family, ultimately leading to the greater economic development, the company proposed to 

introduce this new credit facility in its bouquet of services.

Given this context, during the pilot phase, the company disbursed an amount of `20.6 Mn to 

72 clients under affordable housing loan. The portfolio outstanding as on March 31, 2016 was 

`20.2 Mn.  In the FY 2016-17, the company is planning to launch the product in other operational 

geographies of the company like Bihar and have further expansion in UP and Maharashtra. Given 

the transition to a Small Finance Bank, the company has plans to scale up AHL and a separate 

business vertical in a big way. The current loan size limit of `5 lakh shall also be increased to 

`25 lakh.

An Utkarsh client shaping the future of her family
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National Pension System (NPS-Lite)

In the FY 2015-16, the company did not open much accounts for NPS lite services. At the close 

of the FY 2015-16, the company was serving this product at 53 Branches and had catered to 

34,143 beneficiaries with a total subscription of `11.8 Mn, which is a meagre increment over the 

previous FY 2014-15 client base of 34,015 beneficiaries having a total subscription base of `10.2 

Mn. Reason behind this was closure of the scheme in FY 2015-16 due to the proposed launch of 

a new pension scheme called Atal Pension Yojana (APY).

Financial Performance

In terms of financial performance of the company, the total income from operations for the 

period stood at is `2,386.2 Mn. With operating expenses at `698.7 Mn and financial expenses at 

`1,116.4 Mn, the profit before tax for the financial year stood at `611.1 Mn. The company 

earned Profit after tax of `368.1 Mn for the financial year. 

The Capital to Risk Adjusted Assets (CRAR) of the company stood at 20.68% as on March 31, 

2016 against the regulatory requirement of 15%. 

Resource Mobilization

The company received excellent support from the debt partners during the year 2015-16. The 

total funding support from debt providers including off-balance sheet transactions during the 

financial year was more than `10,601.0 Mn. The company has closed four NCD transactions 

with Foreign Institutional Investors and a private bank (RBL Bank) during the financial year 2016. 

The company also issued Commercial Paper and concluded two Refinance transactions. This 

helped the company to diversify its funding avenues further and reduce dependence on limited 

channels of funding. It also helped in further improvement in asset liability maturing pattern. 

The Company acknowledges excellent support from various banks and financial institutions 

during the financial year. It was mainly because of such support, the Company achieved 

substantial growth during the year.  The company has put lot of thrust on broad basing sources 

of funding and the instruments. It was able to add 8 new funders in its list during the financial 

year.

The company also partnered with IndusInd Bank by becoming the business correspondent. 

This has helped the company in further serving clients through 36 branches in Bihar. This is a 

win-win situation for both the partners as the bank is also getting high quality asset on its 

books.

The company also closed two securitization transactions of `1,048.2 Mn. This was possible due 

to the company's presence in multiple states. This could mitigate the concentration risk. The 

company has 16.1% of its books under off-balance sheet. The company was able to diversify 

the transaction instrument even in off-balance sheet book with Direct Assignment, 

Securitization and Business Correspondent Model. 
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Audit & Internal Control

The Internal Audit Department (IAD) evaluates the internal controls of the organization and 

adherence to the policy and process of 

the company, thereby ensuring that all 

the processes of the company's various 

functions are adhered to in its letter and 

spirit. All the Business, Support and 

Control functions pf the company be at 

Administrative Office or at Branches are 

subjected to a strong internal audit 

scrutiny every quarter on a regular 

basis.

The JLG branches undergo Short Audits 

and Comprehensive Audits each every 

quarter in 2 to 3 days and 5 to 6 days 

respectively. The MEL Branches are 

audited once a quarter in 3 to 4 days. 

The administrative units are also audited every quarter in 3 to 4 days for each Support and Control 

functions. 

An 'Integrated Employee Action and Escalation Matrix' has been developed and implemented 

during FY 2015-16 for suitable categorization of the deviations observed in field and identifying the 

point of responsibility. The matrix has helped streamlining the action process in a better way. Also, 

given the growth in business operations and hence the number of branches, the department is 

being strengthened with suitable skill set employees. In the FY 2016-17, it is proposed to introduce 

a tab-based Audit approach to integrate it with overall MIS structure of the company and hence 

also to increase the efficiency of audit process. 

Rating & Grading 

ICRA has upgraded the grading of the company from M2+ (pronounced M two plus) to M1 

(pronounced M one). This grading indicates that in ICRA's current opinion, the Graded MFI's ability 

to manage its microfinance activities in a sustainable manner is the highest. 

The highest MFI grading for Utkarsh is supported by its good loan organization, Internal audit, MIS, 

Risk Management and collection mechanism, its experienced board management team, and 

strong investor profile which have been strengthened further over the last one year. These 

positives, coupled with Utkarsh's good financial flexibility arising out of relationship with a large 

number of lenders as well as its ability to raise equity in a timely manner have helped the company 

to scale up operations (Portfolio of `8,100 Mn as on June 30, 2015 CAGR of 107% FY 12 onwards) 

while expanding and diversifying across 8 state and reduce its concentration in the State of Uttar 

Pradesh from 58% as on March 31, 2015 to 44% as on March 31, 2015 and is likely to come down 

 Internal Audit Team at work
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to around 35% by the end of the current financial year, and maintaining good asset quality (0 + 

delinquencies of 0.23% as on March 31, 2015) and profitability indicators (ROE of 114% in 2014  

15). Nevertheless, ICRA has noted Utkarsh's high pace of growth, and relatively high attrition rates 

for the industry and ability of the company to diversify into newer geographies as well as newer 

products (housing loans and microenterprise loans) while maintaining the asset quality indicators 

would be important from a grading perspective.

As for the company's business plan, the company plans to grow at a CAGR of 60-65% over the 

next three years and with the pace of growth being higher than the internal capital generation, the 

company would require external capital infusion of around `1,500 Mn (65%% of the present Net-

worth) over the next three years to meet its growth plans as well as to comply with the Foreign 

Exchange Management Act (FEMA) guidelines. Based on the track record of Utkarsh's equity 

raising in the past and its strong investor profile, ICRA expects the company to be able to raise 

equity in a timely manner going forward as well.

Utkarsh had diversified funding profile, with around 33 direct lenders and increasing share of debt 

market instrument in the overall resource mix. As for Utkarsh's liquidity profile, it is comfortable 

supported by the well relatively shorter tenor asset vis-à-vis liabilities. However the company 

would require regular flow of funds for meeting in growth plans. 

Utkarsh earning profile is good, (ROE of 11.14% in 2014-15 on a higher capital base post infusion) 

and is supported by moderate operating expenses (7.25% as a percentage of average managed 

advances) despite the relatively higher pace of growth. However, diversify of earning continues to 

be low, as the company is almost entirely dependent on these loan products for income. As for 

incremental profitability, though portfolio yields are expected to decline owing to the reduction in 

the interest rate charged to customer by 1% to 24% from July 2015 onwards however a 

commensurate decline in the cost of funds owing to improvement in credit profile and increased 

funding from bank is likely to help Utkarsh in maintaining in the interest spreads. Additionally, 

some further moderation in operating expenses could help the company to maintain ROE of 13-

16%, provided the company is able to keep its asset quality indicators under control.  

MSME Banking Excellence Award-2015

Chamber of Indian Micro Small & Medium Enterprises (CIMSME), a key industry Chamber 

dedicated to the well-being of MSME sector, presented the Third Edition of its flagship MSME 

Banking cum NBFC Excellence Awards-2015 for BANKS as well as NBFCs. The company was 

adjudged for the “MSME Banking Excellence Award  2015” by the Special Jury for Serving 

MSMEs. The award was given by Chamber of Indian Micro Small & Medium Enterprises (CIMSME) 

in an event at New Delhi, recognizing its contribution and mandate for the MEL segment.

Risk Management & Responsible Finance 

The company's robust risk management mechanism has been well recognized in microfinance 

space by investors including rating and grading agencies. At Utkarsh, all the products, processes, 
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procedures - existing or proposed, have 

to confirm to the Risk Management (RM) 

a n d  R e s p o n s i b l e  F i n a n c e  ( R F )  

framework. The Risk management 

approach is adopted considering 

potential risk associated with all its 

operational activities like microfinance 

operations (JLG Loans) and Micro 

Enterprise Loan (MEL). 

During the FY 2015-16, the dynamic 

nature of Risk Management process at 

Utkarsh has been evaluated and reviewed in context of the changing landscape of the sector. IFC 

supported M2i Consulting review is helping to develop and implement the Risk Management 

Framework 2.0 version. The very first version in the very initial years of Utkarsh genesis was also 

developed by M2i consulting in support of IFC.

As a part of the framework review and implementation, Risk Workshops were organized for all 

Branch Managers across all operational geographies of Utkarsh. To keep risk culture live and active 

in the organization, the risk management team coordinates with the training team and deliberates 

on risk management through various Induction and Refresher Trainings. 

Going forward, especially in context of transition to a Small Finance Bank, the Risk Management 

department shall now be establishing ICAAP (Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process) to 

assess capital requirements for various risk categories. This will be in accordance with Basel - III 

recommendations for the Banks. For microfinance operations it is also proposed to implement a 

system of credit rating of individuals, which shall be developed on the basis of attendance, 

increase in loan amount, rating of centers and instance of hidden delinquency. This rating shall be 

used for credit appraisal.

Technology

Utkarsh believes technology as one of the important success mantra for scalability and efficiency. 

The company, since inception, has given utmost importance in managing its information system in 

a professional, efficient and secured manner and which is scalable also. 

During current FY the usage of mobile technology has been extended to customer boarding and 

loan sanctioning processes as well. The usage of mobile LOS (Loan Originating System) helped 

the company to move towards paperless banking. Company has issued tablets to all its field 

employees to facilitate effective usage of mobile applications. This upgrade from Manual 

Operations to Mobile Based operations and now to a TAB based operation right in the hands of 

front level field officers has helped increase the efficiency in business operations.

Risk Workshop Session in-progress
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Historically, EOD (End of Day) and SOD (Start of Day) processes used to consume 4 to 5 hours of 

the IT administration team. To overcome this, IT vendor was approached to provide auto EOD / 

SOD process using which the process is now managed without human presence.

For the Small Finance Bank transition also, the company is implementing the latest concepts in 

Core Banking Solution (CBS). Other than the latest technology efficiency features, it has also the 

unique feature of 'role based screen interfaces' rather than code based interface screens. This role 

base screen interfaces, being user (employee) friendly shall bring-in real time efficiency in 

operations.

Utkarsh follows the prudent norms of checking Credit Information Report (CIR) of every applicants 

before disbursing loans to them. During the FY 2015-16, to minimize the turnaround time and to 

get instant CIR, the core solution has been integrated with database of both the Credit Bureaus, 

Equifax and CRIF Highmark. This has increased the efficiency in service delivery at field level.

Human Resource

The role of Human Resource Department, especially in the current phase of company's growth and 

transition becomes utmost critical. The department believes that Human Resource Management is 

a means to achieve efficiency and effectiveness aligned towards the overall vision and mission of 

the organization by ensuring overall employee satisfaction and their well-being.  

To align with the corporate strategies, adequate recruitments are done well in advance. Growth in 

employee strength in comparison to last financial year has been 50% in the FY 2015-16. The 

number of employees as on March 31, 2016 was 2,636.

As the company is transforming from an NBFC-MFI (ND-SI) to a Small Finance Bank, the HR team 

is continuously working with new strategies to make the transition journey smooth. Towards this, 

the HR team completed an 'Employee Pulse Check Survey' to analyze the change-readiness and 

cultural fitment of all its employees. The insights learned re factored in for making suitable 

strategies for a delight transition experience.  

With steep increase in the number of employees and hence the need to manage the records 

efficiently, the company has engaged with RAMCO Human Capital Management, a cloud based HR 

software provider company for strengthening the HR system. Firstly, the payroll module of the 

software has been successfully rolled out. Employee Self Services (ESS) is being rolled out 

secondly. After enabling ESS system, employee would have access to their database up to some 

extent. The HR database system has been strengthened and the payroll system has become error 

free after rolling out the RAMCO HR software.

The HR team is now more organized for delivering more for successful conversion into Small 

finance Bank. Although the team has worked hard in last financial year and recruited more than 

2,000 employees, the team has fresh plans to recruit 2,500 plus employees in next six months to 

meet the SFB - banking requirements. A dedicated recruitment team is working on it.



15

Client Grievance Redressal  

The company has a sound Client Grievance Redressal mechanism is place, which also has been 

studied by industry stakeholders including MFIN and adjudged as one of the best practiced 

mechanism in the industry. 

A dedicated Toll Free Number, well popularized amongst the clients receives both the queries and 

concerns, which is recorded, documented and addressed within defined TAT to the satisfaction of 

the client. With increasing business operations and hence increased service products and client 

base, the strength of Grievance Redressal Officer is also increased to ensure smooth services to 

clients. The Toll Free Number has also become a good source of getting other information from 

clients, like immediate Death Cases intimations for Insurance claims, Loan enquiries for different 

products like the JLG, MEL and HL.  

Credit Plus Initiatives

The Company has further scaled up its initiatives in the area of providing Financial Awareness, 

Health Initiatives and other non-financial services penetration for greater coverage and 

effectiveness of the programs. 

During the year the Company successfully implemented various projects on Financial Literacy. 

These include the IFC-Utkarsh Project, SCBF - Accion Project, SIDBI-PSIG project and SWS 

Financial Literacy Project. Over 50,000 women had been trained for better Financial Planning, 

Budgeting, Savings, Insurance, Debt and Investment. Village level campaigns were conducted to 

create awareness on financial literacy as well as various Government initiatives. The members 

were also assisted in accessing various financial services like banking, micro insurance, pension 

etc.

Under the Health Initiatives, the company organized regular polyclinics at 8 branches in 

collaboration with GV Meditech, Varanasi and Ram Krishna Sewashrama, Mirzapur. Primary 

healthcare services were also provided to members in remote areas having limited medical 

facilities through the Mobile Van Primary Health service.

The company also supports organizations for especially abled people under its Goodwill Projects.  

The company continued to provide technical training, credit and market linkages for Agarbatti 

manufacturing.  These were sold under the brand name of Ankur. The objective of this Vocational 

Training and market linkage program was to increase members' household income in a suitable 

manner.

In the ensuing FY, the company has plans to focus primarily on Education (with focus on skill 

development) and Health Initiatives.

Control and Support Functions 

To further strengthen the control and support functions, the company had setup a Vigilance and 

Security Department last year. During the FY 2015-16, the Vigilance Department was further 

strengthened and it started suitably defining and implementing processes aligned to ensure the 
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mandate. A “Vigilance Manual” with the objective of enhancing transparency, accountability and 

efficiency in the organization has also been put in place. The department co-ordinates with the 

Internal Audit and Risk Management teams to identify trends in the key audit indicator of various 

processes / events impacting risk and also the risk trigger points for a prompt investigation and 

action. The department is also has firmed up suitable liaison with relevant external stakeholders to 

keep a vigil for ensuring smooth business operations. 

The Corporate Communication department, which was setup in the last, also firmed up its scope 

of activities. It started establishing suitable communications with relevant internal and external 

stakeholders in a standard, timely and effective manner. The department acts as interface between 

the company and external stake holder through its different publications like Utkarsh Voice 

(Newsletter), Shareholder Communications, Annual Report and brochures / pamphlets. For 

internal stakeholders, the department has started 'Utkarsh Gyan Darpan', a monthly magazine as a 

knowledge kit for employees, wherein the readers also participate their columns. The departments 

has regular interaction with the employees through various Divisional Office Meetings, Induction 

and Refresher Trainings and deliberations on various communications including Email and Office 

etiquettes, etc.

The department also organized a National Conference for the academia stakeholders of the 

microfinance and Small Finance Bank stakeholders. The conference was well received by industry 

partners like SIDBI, MFIN, UPMA, Grameen Foundation and various universities, colleges, 

institutes including HR agencies. 

MD & CEO with his Team at Annual Sports Event
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NAGARAJAN SRINIVASAN

! Nominee Director from CDC (Commonwealth Development Corporation) 

Group Plc (www.cdcgroup.com).

! Having extensive experience in private equity deals while working with a 

PE fund Actis in South Asia and in Sub Saharan Africa with both CDC and 

Standard Chartered Bank.

! Master's degree in Economics and a post Graduate in Business 

Administration from Warwick School of Business.

RAMNI NIRULA

! Independent Director.

! Having more than 3 decades of financial sector experience, majorly in 

the domain of corporate banking, government banking and securities. 

Retired as a Senior General Manager from ICICI Bank. 

! Master's in Business Administration from Delhi University.

KNUT ARVE FRIGAARD

! Nominee Director from Norwegian Microfinance 

Initiative.(http://www.nmimicro.no)

! Having extensive experience in financial planning and strategy while 

working in Verdane Capital Advisors, McKinsey & Company, Medecins 

Sans Frontieres (MSF), Mamut ASA, numerous boards in the Nordic 

region as well as in Europe and US.

! MBA from INSEAD, France; MSc in Economics and Business from 

Norwegian School; Undergone Microfinance training from The Boulder 

Institute of Microfinance.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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SHUBHALAKSHMI A. PANSE

! Independent Director. 

! Having more than 3 decades of experience in diverse disciplines of 

banking sector like credit management, recovery, treasury and 

information technology. Retired as CMD of Allahabad Bank.

! Gold medallist in M.Sc. from Pune University and MBA from Drexel 

University, USA. 

SUSHMA KAUSHIK

! Nominee Director from Aavishkaar Goodwell (http://www.aavishkaar.in)

! Having extensive experience in financial services, real estate, hospitality 

and education sector while working with Aavishkaar, Starwood Capital 

India Advisors and Ashoka - Innovators for the Public (especially worked 

with social entrepreneurs in the "Housing for ALL" initiative).

! Engineering Graduate from RVCE, Bangalore and MBA from Indian 

School of Business, Hyderabad.

TANTRA NARAYAN THAKUR

! Independent Director.

! Having extensive experience in power sector and government setups 

while working with PTC India Ltd. (formerly Power Trading Corporation 

of India Ltd.) and Indian Audit and Accounts Services. Has been Dy. 

Secretary in Government of India, Asst. Comptroller & Auditor General, 

Secretary to Chief Minister, Bihar and as Chairman / Advisory of many 

Energy Forums.

! B.Sc. (Engineering) from BIT Sindri.

VISHAL MEHTA

! Nominee Director from Lok Capital (www.lokcapital.com)

! Co-founder of Lok Advisory Services. Having extensive experience in 

financial services while working with Capital One, Siemens, PRTM and 

also as a consultant to social projects in India and Kenya.

! Engineering from Delhi University and MBA from the University of 

Michigan, Ann Arbor.
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TRILOK NATH SHUKLA

! Whole Time Director and also the Chief Operating Officer of the 

company.

! Having extensive experience in microfinance sector. Founder member 

of 'Cashpor Micro Credit', a section 25 company and 'Cashpor Financial 

Services Ltd'.

! MA in Sociology from Purvanchal University, UP and Advance Diploma 

in Rural Technology Development and Management from IERT 

Allahabad.

GOVIND SINGH

! Founder of the Company and also Managing Director and Chief 

Executive Officer.

! Having extensive experience of over 28 years in banking & financial 

sector at different levels. Previously worked with ICICI Bank, State Bank 

of Patiala, Surya Roshni Group, Bank Internasional Indonesia and 

Axis Bank.

! Certified Associate of Indian Institute of Bankers (CAIIB) from IIBF, 

Mumbai and B. Com (Hons.) from Delhi University.



20

A) Aavishkaar Goodwell 

 (www.aavishkaar.in)

 Aavishkaar Goodwell is a for-profit business development company that 

provides equity finance and hands-on support to entrepreneurial 

microfinance organizations in India on a socially and commercially 

sustainable basis. It aims to improve access to affordable financial services 

for millions of families in order to contribute to poverty alleviation and 

sustainable development. They help in scaling up entrepreneurial 

microfinance organizations in India and integrating them into the 

mainstream financial sector.

B) Commonwealth Development Corporation (CDC) Group plc

(www.cdcgroup.com)

 Founded in 1948, CDC is the UK's Development Finance 

Institution (DFI) wholly owned by the UK Government's 

Department for International Development (DFID). It is the 

world's oldest DFI with a history of making successful 

investments in businesses which have become industry 

leaders thereby having enormous impact on the private 

sector in their country and region as well as improving the lives of many, many individuals. CDC's 

mission is to support the building of businesses throughout Africa and South Asia, to create jobs 

and make a lasting difference to people's lives in some of the world's poorest places.

C) International Finance Corporation

(www.ifc.org) 

 IFC is a member of World Bank Group and supports 

microfinance by:

! Engaging in partnerships and collective investment 

vehicles

! Supporting commercial banks to extend their operations to the sector

! Providing innovative solutions to microfinance institutions, including local currency loans.

! Helping transform non-profit and nongovernmental organizations into for-profit financial 

Intermediaries.

! Offering targeted advisory services

INSTITUTIONAL INVESTORS
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D) Lok Capital

(www.lokcapital.com) 

 The Lok Capital initiative was launched at the end of 2000 

with the support of a grant from the Rockefeller 

Foundation. Lok Capital means People's Capital. Lok 

Capital defines itself as a hands-on financial investor with 

social performance goals and standards, dedicated to 

promoting financial and social inclusion through all its 

activities. India was chosen as the Funds' first market for the Lok Capital initiative for two 

reasons. First, schemes intended to improve access to basic services for the poor have not 

proven to be greatly successful in India. There exists enormous potential for delivering 

commercially viable solutions to urban and rural poor. Second, the Lok Capital team has a 

deep understanding and working knowledge of India, including its complex regulatory 

environment and entrepreneurial culture. Lok Capital manages two BoP funds with over $85 

Mn under management. The funds are the central entity of the Lok Group structure.

E) Norwegian Microfinance Initiative (NMI) 

(www.nmimicro.no)

 The Norwegian Microfinance Initiative (NMI) is a 

new and innovative strategic partnership 

between the Norwegian public and private 

sectors that invests in microfinance institutions in 

developing countries. It aims to contribute to the 

empowerment of poor people and to the creation of jobs, wealth and economic and social 

sustainability in developing countries by investing in and supporting Microfinance 

Institutions.
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GOVIND SINGH

! Founder of the Company and also Managing Director and Chief Executive 

Officer.

! Having extensive experience of over 28 years in banking & financial sector at 

different levels. Previously the business head for Rural and Agri Liabilities, 

TASC segment, Retail Liabilities group and Retail Infrastructure Group at ICICI 

Bank. Also worked with State Bank of Patiala, Surya Roshni Group, 

Bank Internasional Indonesia and Axis Bank.

! B. Com (Hons.) from Delhi University and is a Certified Associate of Indian 

Institute of Bankers (CAIIB) from Mumbai.

ABHISHEKA KUMAR

! Chief Financial Officer.

! Over 14 years of experience in micro finance domain (Product, Business, 

Profitability and Stressed Asset Management) while working with ICICI Bank 

and Friends of Women's World Banking (India). Had also a stint with Times of 

India. 

! Post Graduate Diploma in Rural Management from Institute of Rural 

Management, Anand (IRMA). 

TRILOK NATH SHUKLA

! Head - JLG Business. 

! Over 19 years of experience in microfinance sector, especially in northern part 

of the country. Was also a founder member of Cashpor and headed serval 

department in Cashpor like operations, Audit, Training, Human Resource, 

Admin and Insurance. His last assignment was General Manager Human 

Resource.

! MA in Sociology from Purvanchal University, UP and Advance Diploma in 

Rural Technology Development and Management from IERT Allahabad. 

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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VIVEK KASHYAP

! Head - Micro Enterprises & Housing Loans

! 10 years of experience in the domain of Housing finance, Microfinance and 

Sales & Marketing while working as AVP with Swarna Pragati Housing 

Microfinance Private Limited, Zonal Manager with SKS Microfinance, State 

Head - Emerging Markets with TATA Motors and Senior Manager with FINO 

Ltd. 

! Post Graduate Diploma in Rural Management from Institute of Rural 

Management, Anand (IRMA). 

RAHUL DEY

! Head - IT & Administration.

! Over 13 years of experience in Banking and Micro Finance.  Previously 

worked with Ujjivan Financial Services Pvt Ltd, Anjali Microfinance Pvt Ltd, 

Spandana Spoorthy Financial Ltd, ICICI Bank Ltd and Ballarpur Industries 

Ltd at various capacities.

! Post Graduate Diploma in Rural Management from Xavier Institute of 

Management, Bhubaneshwar.

RAGHVENDRA SINGH

! Head - Vigilance & Security.

! Over 40 years of rich experience in public domain and supervision of 

teams while working with Uttar Pradesh Police Department. Joined Police 

Services in 1975 and retired as Deputy Superintendent of Police (DSP) in 

2015. Stint include 18 years of Vigilance / Anti-Corruption work, other than 

the normal police roles. 

! Recipient of Gallantry Medal (1985), Sarahniya Sewa Padak (1989), 

Utkristha Sewa Panda (1995), United Nations Peace Medal (1996), 

President Medal (1996) and President Police Medal (2007). 
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ASHWANI KUMAR

! Head -  Training & Corporate Communications

! Over 10 years of industry experience in Rural Finance, Training and 

Development Management while working with NABARD Financial Services 

Ltd.  (NABFINS) as Assistant General Manager (Finance) and Canara Bank as 

Manager in Priority Credit Wing, Head Office. Had also a stint with Locus 

Research and Consultants Pvt Ltd., Delhi.

! PGDRM from Institute of Rural Management, Anand (IRMA), CFA from ICFAI 

(India) and CAIIB with other Diplomas and Certifications from IIBF, Mumbai. 

PANKAJ KUMAR SINGH

! Head - Internal Audit & Client Interactions.

! Over 10 years of micro finance, corporate banking, business development & 

direct sales exposure while working with HDFC Bank Ltd as Area Head - TASC 

(Direct Sales) and Relationship Manager in Microfinance Division. 

! Post Graduate Diploma in Rural Management from Institute of Rural 

Management, Anand (IRMA). Bachelor of Veterinary Sciences and Animal 

Husbandry, BAU. 

PRAVEEN KUMAR 

! VP Compliance.

! Over 12 years of experience nationally and internationally while working with 

Bank and Micro Finance companies. With Accion International for 6 years to 

support their partner institutions in India and Myanmar; with ICICI Bank 

(handling sales and institutional development), Ujjivan Financial Services and 

Share Micro Finance (handling product development of group and individual 

loans). Experienced in Strategy and Policy, Audit and Risk. 

! Post Graduate Diploma in Rural Management from Xavier Institute of 

Management.
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RAHUL SINGH

! VP - JLG Business.

! Over 11 years' experience in micro finance while working with Muthoot 

Fincorp Ltd as Chief Manager and in various other capacities at Arman 

Finance Ltd, SKS Microfinance and Deworm the World Initiative. 

! MBA from Indian Institute of Forest Management.

ARVIND KUMAR

! Head - Product and Support (JLG Business).

! Over 11 years of experience in banking sector with exposure of Retail 

Branch Banking and Rural Micro & Agri Business Group while working 

with ICICI Bank.

! MBA from Indian institute of Planning & Management (IIPM), New Delhi.

SHYAM SUNDER RAI

! Vertical Head - Accounts Department.

! Over 16 years of experience in Accounts, Taxation and Audit in large and 

medium sized finance industries. Earlier with Cashpor Micro Credit for 

over a year as Head of Accounts. Also has experience of auditing of 

Electricity distribution companies, coal companies, banks and insurance 

companies.

! Chartered Accountant and Diploma course in Information System Audit 

from ICAI.

PRIYANKA SINGH

! Executive Assistant to MD and CEO and concurrent charge of HR 

supervision.

! Experience of more than 10 years. Previously worked with Bharti Axa Life 

Insurance & Management Degree from IILM Gurgaon.

ASHISH SINGH

! AVP – Product and Marketing.

! Over 13 years of experience in Micro Finance, Social and legal sector.

! MBA (Finance) and LL.B. Attended several training programs on SPM, 

Risk Management and Client Protection Initiative.
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ABHISHEK VERMA

! AVP - Information Technology.

! Currently senior function of Information Technology.   

! Experience of more than 10 years in Micro Finance IT domain.       

! Master's degree in Computer Application from Uttar Pradesh Rajshri Tandon 

Open University, Allahabad.

INDRA DEO PANDEY

! AVP - Responsible Finance.

! Over 13 years of experience in in Micro Finance, Social and legal sector.

! MBA (Finance), and LL.B. Attended several training programs on SPM, Risk 

Management and Client Protection Initiative.

SHRUTI AGARWALLA

! Head Operations – Corporate Social Responsibility.

! Over 15 years of experience while working as an entrepreneur in FMCG and 

supply chain management in fabrics designs and web designing.

! Economics graduate from Delhi University.

SANJAY SINGH

! Zonal Manager - Uttar Pradesh.

! More than 12 years' experience in micro finance operations while working 

with   microfinance companies. 

! BA from Awadh University.

PALASH GHOSHAL 

! Zonal Manager - Bihar.

! Experience of more than 16 years in Micro & Macro Finance and Rural 

livelihoods.

! Graduate in Agriculture from Jawaharlal Nehru Agriculture University, 

Jabalpur and Master's in MPhil in Agri Economy.
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ARUP KUMAR DUTTA

! Head - Liabilities 

! Over 23 years of experience in banking and financial sector all throughout 

his career while working with Axis Bank in senior leadership roles in the 

corporate as well as retail banking verticals. Domain expertise areas 

include Retail Branch Banking, Corporate Liabilities, Cash Management 

Services and Government Business including Financial Inclusion 

initiatives. Had also worked with Unit Trust of India, handling assignments 

related to Sales & Marketing (strategic planning), Accounts and 

Operations. 

! Economics Graduate (Visva - Bharati University); Post Graduate 

(Himachal Pradesh University); PGDBM (IISWBM-Kolkata); PGCHRM 

(XLRI-Jamshedpur) and JAIIB (IIBF-Mumbai).

ASHWANI SRIVASTAVA  

! Head - Current Accounts

! More than 15 years of experience in banking and finance industry, 

especially in the domain of Current Accounts, Cash Management 

Services, Merchant Acquisition and Payments while working with CMS 

Info Systems Limited as National Sales Head for Door Step Banking; Axis 

Bank in Retail Banking and Business Banking departments; as a Zonal 

Business Coordinator for West in Merchant Acquisition Department. Also 

worked with Bobcards Limited (A Subsidiary of Bank of Baroda). 

! MBA in Marketing (Lucknow University) and Post Graduate in Physics 

(Kanpur University.)

VINOD TIWARI 

! Head - Projects

! Overall 11 years' experience in Real Estate (Projects & Administration) and 

work place management (Facility Management) while working in the 

domain of BPO / KPO / IT, Banking, Government Embassy, Infrastructure, 

Real Estate, Hotels and Travel. 

! Hotel Management from BVB Delhi, Graduate from Delhi University, 

Diploma in German from BVB Delhi.

NEW INCUMBENTS
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The Financial Year 2015-16 started with great excitement of nearing to the Vision of serving one 

million households through a 

range of  socia l ly  or iented 

products and services by 2016. 

A n d  t h e  e x c i t e m e n t  w a s  

cherished on March 29, 2016, 

just before closing the books of 

accounts for financial year, 

when the company made the 

loan disbursement to its 1 

millionth client. Team Utkarsh 

celebrated this as a major 

landmark in  the histor ica l  

journey of Utkarsh, which has 

been possible with all out and synergetic efforts of all the team members, guided and supported 

by Board of Directors / Investors and all the other stakeholders. 

The company entered 2 new states to expand its business operations. Jharkhand and Chhattisgarh 

were added to our Hub 1 and Hub 3 zones respectively. Alongwith expansion in newer states, the 

company also expanded its operations in newer geographies / districts of existing states. Starting 

its operations 255 Branches in 65 districts of 8 States on April 1, 2016, the outreach of the 

company expanded through 342 Branches in 98 districts of 10 States as at the close of March 31, 

2016.

The company had 1,010,208 active client bases with a portfolio outstanding of `14,324.8 Mn as at 

March 31, 2016, up from the active client base of 608,288 (1.66 times year on year increment) with 

a portfolio outstanding of `7,280.9 Mn (over 96% increment on a year to year basis) as at March 

31, 2015.

Microfinance outreach -

Joint Liability Group Lending 

Operations 

The microfinance outreach of 

the company was expanded 

from 240 Branches to 321 

branches with 33 newer districts 

covering 2 news states of 

Chhattisgarh and Jharkhand. 

The company crossed the 

`318 Mn `752.9 Mn 

`1,767 Mn 

`3,434 Mn 
`6,922.8 Mn 

`13,433.4 Mn 

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 

JLG Portfolio  

`318  Mn
`754.1  Mn

`1,781.8  Mn

`3,554.3  Mn

`7,280.9  Mn

`14,326.7  Mn

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 

Overall  Portfolio

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE
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microfinance portfolio mark of `10,000 Mn in the month of December 2015, with negligible PAR, 

thereby maintaining the portfolio quality. Out of 321 JLG business branches, 265 branches touched 

the portfolio outstanding mark of more than `20 Mn and even 5 branches crossed the portfolio 

outstanding of `100 Mn. More number of branches are now scaling up their business activities. 

Under the BC Partnership Model with IndusInd Bank, the company disbursed microfinance loans of 

`271 Mn to 16,361 clients during the FY 2015-16. The BC model is active at 36 branches the 

company in the state of Bihar. As at the close of the FY 2015-16, the total outstanding under BC 

Model was `330 Mn with active client base of 38,736.

A quick glance at the historical microfinance outreach of the company shows that from the 2nd 

year of its business, it is almost doubling the portfolio outstanding consistently.

 Financial Year No. of Active Loan Clients*  Portfolio Outstanding (` in Mn)

 09-10 8,000 60

 10-11 55,000 318

 11-12 1,00,000 753

 12-13 2,00,000 1,767

 13-14 3,17,000 3,434

 14-15 6,01,465 6,922

 15-16 9,95,810 13,433

 *JLG clients

To further increase the efficiency of JLG business, technology has been leveraged across all 

functions. The company upgraded its mobile based technology used for JLG operation to a TAB 

based system. Now the Credit Officers and Branch Managers report and monitor center meetings, 

JLG Center Meeting in-progress
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collections, disbursements, attendance of individual clients, loan utilization checks and 

prepayment through TAB at their hand. The company started conducting these activities through 

TAB initially as a pilot in H1 of FY and then at the start of H2, it further selected few branches to 

enter Loan Application Forms, conduct Continuous Group Training (CGT), Group Recognition Test 

(GRT) and all other such JLG activities through TAB. This was done successfully at 150+ branches 

in the Company. Now it is being done across branches and hence the company is also able to 

move to a paperless branch model. The technology was also leveraged to improve upon the 

business dashboards for Senior Management for real time monitoring of business process and 

performance. 

The company has been able to further increase the number of Women Branches, where all the 

employees including Credit Officer, Branch Operations Officer and Branch Managers are women 

only at the branch. The number of such Branches have been 9 as at the close of March 31, 2016, 

with an increment of 3 Branches as compared to last year.

The company has ambitious plan for ensuing FY 2016-17, where it is proposed to increase the 

increase outreach of microfinance lending at the same pace but with suitable controls in place, 

ensuring quality portfolio. It would be utmost critical to keep an eye on important efficiency 

indicators like CB rejection ratio, drop out ratios, incremental Active Loan Clients (ALC) per center 

and also per field officer. The company has suitable strategies in place to execute this plan through 

addition 70 branches in the ensuring FY. 

With very sincere, dedicated and hardworking team members having suitable blend of soft skills, 

the company is confident of realising all set plans with best quality portfolio.

Micro Enterprises Lending (MEL) Business 

Utkarsh has scaled up its MEL business operations by reaching 14,326 active client base having 

the outstanding portfolio of `871 Mn as at March 31, 2016. The increment is from 6,823 active 

client base with portfolio outstanding of `358 Mn as the close of previous FY 2014-15. The active 

base is more than doubled and the portfolio outstanding is 2.4 times as compared to previous 

year. 

The branch network of MEL has 

increased from 15 to 21 Branches 

in a year. The MEL business has 

seen increment in the average 

ticket size from about `73,000 to 

about `84,000 during the FY 2015-

16. The business is reaching out to 

more number of missing middle 

segment clients who are not very 

familiar with the banking processes 

`1.2 Mn 
`14.8 Mn 

`120.3 Mn 

`358.1 Mn 

`871.3 Mn 

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 

MEL Portfolio  
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and hence not able to avail loan approvals from regular banks. With suitable hand-holding of 

company's Field Officers and Branch Manager, these clients feel confident and scale up their 

business with MEL Loan services.

Company's existing JLG clients, upon scaling up their micro business are also coming up in a large 

numbers to avail MEL Loans to further expand their business. In context of the Small Finance bank 

transition, the company has further plans to expand the MEL business as MSME in the current as 

well as newer geographies where the loan size would be scaled up from the current limit of 

`300,000 to `2,500,000.

Affordable Housing Loan (AHL)

During the FY 2015-16, the company forayed into affordable housing loans business through a 

pilot project at 2 locations viz. Varanasi and Nagpur. The company closed the year with a pilot 

business portfolio outstanding of `20.2 Mn by reaching to 72 clients.

Taking cues from the pilot experience, the company has now plans to expand this business in a big 

way in the ensuing FY. In context of transition to Small Finance Bank also, the current maximum 

ticket size under AHL shall be increased from `500,000 to `2,500,000. The company has plans to 

expand the AHL business to Bihar and with further large scale expansion in Uttar Pradesh and 

Maharashtra.

National Pension System  NPS Lite Services

With the proposed launch of Atal Pension Yojana (APY) by Government of India, the NPS Lite 

product was kept on hold and hence the company did not open much accounts for the same.

At the close of the FY 2015-16, the company was serving this product at 53 Branches and had 

catered to 34,143 beneficiaries with a total subscription of `11.8 Mn, which is a meagre increment 

over the previous FY 2014-15 client base of 34,015 beneficiaries having a total subscription base of 

`10.2 Mn. 
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Profitability 

Utkarsh achieved a PBT of `611.1 Mn for the year ended March 31, 2016. The remarkable feat was 

achieved because of excellent portfolio quality, reduction in operating cost, lower cost of fund, 

efficient cash management practice, steady growth and improvement in processes. The PBT 

increased from `264.8 Mn in FY 2015 to `611.1 Mn in FY 2016. 

Debt Funding

Total sanction from Banks/ Financial Intuitions (FIs) during the financial year 2015-16 was `13,167.3 

Mn (It includes Off-Balance Sheet of `1,171.7 Mn). Total draw down during the same period was 

`10,601 Mn (It includes Off Balance Sheet of `1048.2). Utkarsh was able to add 8 new funders, 

apart from receiving timely funding support from existing funders. Utkarsh has an existing 

relationship with 40 Banks/FIs.

Diversification of funding sources

A diversified funding base creates 

opportunities for access to a wide 

array of funding that consistently 

supports the core mission, goals, 

and services of an organization.  

Utkarsh is conscious of this and 

consistently endeavors to diversify 

i t s  fund ing base  as  wel l  as  

diversify the funding instruments. 

It has received funds through Term 

Loan,  B i la tera l  Ass ignment ,  

Securit izat ion, Loan through 

guarantee ,  Non- Conver t ib le  

Debenture, Refinance, External Commercial Borrowing and Commercial Paper etc. It has 26.2% of 

funding from Public Sector Banks, 36.7% funding from private sector banks, 28.1% from Foreign 

Institutional Investors, 9.1% from NBFCs & 4.6% from foreign banks. In terms of funding 

instruments, 41.4% is through Term Loan, 13.7 is through Refinance, 25.9% is through Non-

Convertible Debenture, 2.2% is through External Commercial Borrowing & 16.8% is through off 

balance sheet transactions. Among the top 5 Term Loan funders, there are 2 from DFI, 1 from 

Private sector Banks & 2 from Foreign Financial Institutions. The company was also able to get 

better Terms & Conditions from many banks/FIs due to excellent track record with respect to not 

only timely repayments but also compliance with all financial and non-financial covenants.

 ̀ 10.3   Mn
 ̀ 21.5   Mn

 ̀ 59.9   Mn

 ̀ 135.9   Mn

 ̀ 264.8   Mn

 611 1  ` .  Mn

 ̀ 9.1   Mn  ̀ 14.1   Mn
 ̀ 38.9   Mn  ̀ 82.2   Mn

 ̀ 160.2   Mn

 368 1  ` .  Mn
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Profit Before Tax (PBT) and 
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Asset Liability position

A mismatch in the tenure of borrowed and disbursed funds could result in a liquidity crunch and 

impact the Company's ability to service its loans. Hence, it is imperative that there exists no 

negative mismatch between the tenure of borrowings portfolio and portfolio. Currently, 64.5% of 

the assets are of 24 months, where as 29.3% assets are of 13.5 months, 6.1% is of 26.4 months 

and 0.14% is of 60 months. Hence, the average tenure of disbursed funds is 21.3 months. The 

average tenure of borrowed funds is 34.9 months. However, if the company include the final tenor 

of NCD transactions without considering put/call options, the average tenure of borrowed funds is 

37.9 months. The average tenure of borrowed funds is rising over the years with increase in 

percentage share of Public Sector banks & NCDs.  Hence, there is positive mismatch in tenure. 

Income from Operations

The revenue from operations in FY 2015-16 is `2,386.2 Mn against `1,349.6 Mn in FY 2014-15. This 

represents a growth of 76.8%. This has been possible, mainly due to growth in loan portfolio and 

also due to maintaining excellent portfolio quality.

Fund Management

Prudence and appropriate risk is 

the guiding principle for decision 

making in treasury functions. In 

this backdrop, the company has a 

policy of keeping funds in liquid 

form on the basis of higher of 

either 9% of the loan portfolio or 

repayments for next 30 days and 

three months operating expenses. 

The temporary surplus funds are 

parked in Bank Fixed Deposit or 

Money Market Mutual Fund. The company has CC/ OD facilities which helps in better fund 

management. It parks temporary surplus funds in Bank FDs based on the highest rate whenever 

the fund has to be parked for more than 7 days. In case the fund has to be parked for less than 7 

days, the company parks the fund in Money Market Mutual Funds (MMMF). Efforts are made 

consistently to transfer excess funds from the branches to corporate account so that it is invested 

in bank FD/MMMF. Due to increased focus of the company on fund management, it was able to 

reduce the surplus fund by 3.5% in the FY 15 -16.

Operating Expense

Utkarsh has focused on operating expense since inception and analyses it on a monthly basis. The 

operating expense ratio has decreased from 7.7% in March 2015 to 7.2% in March 2016. The 

reduction has been possible in spite of the company starting its operation in Jharkhand and 

Chhattisgarh, and further penetrating in Bihar, Madhya Pradesh, Delhi-NCR, Uttar Pradesh, and 

Uttarakhand by opening 87 branches during the FY 15 -16.

4.20% 2.40% 2.90% 2.54% 
2.60% 3.29% 

9.60% 

4.70% 

9.12% 11.96% 

12.90% 

15.88% 
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HR Initiatives 

Aligned with the Vision and Mission and 

driven by the Core Values of the company, 

the HR Team focusses on the providing 

su i tab le  support  for  implement ing 

corporate strategies. 

The growth in employee strength in 

comparison to last FY 2014-15 is 50% in FY 

2015-16. As the company is transforming 

from an NBFC-MFI to a Small Finance Bank 

the HR team is continuously working with 

new strategies to make the journey smooth.

Some of the initiatives for the year are as under:

Employee Pulse Check Survey

HR team completed Employee Pulse Check survey to check the change readiness and cultural 

fitment of the employees of Utkarsh. It was an important task for HR team, which the team 

completed in a very short deadline.

Employee Engagement & Change Readiness for SFB

HR team is working continuously for greater employee engagement. The first phase of the change 

readiness activity has been successfully completed as Employee Pulse Check Survey. Now 

employees are being informed about the changes and strategies through Town Hall meeting. HR 

Team alongwith Senior Management is interacting with employees regarding recent changes, 

functions alignment and overall company level alignment based on transition. They are also 

engaged for grade rationalization and role change in coming months. Employees are encouraged 

to choose their departments of choice based on their capability to handle proposed profiles in this 

banking transition phase. In coming months IJP (Internal Job Posting) will be available on large 

scale for employees to meet the requirements of different department and to provide new 

opportunity of growth to the existing employees.  Grade and salary rationalization process is in 

process and the whole exercise is being done as per banking industry standard.

New HR Software

With increasing size of the company, the company has engaged with RAMCO Human Capital 

Management, a cloud based HR Software Provider Company for strengthening its HR system. The 

software is being implemented in phased manner suitable integration of end to end processes.

Employees engaging in recreation activities

SUPPORT FUNCTIONS
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Future Strategy

In context of the transition to a Small Finance Bank, the very first requirement at hands of the 

company is to have sufficient employees in place. Towards this, a dedicated recruitment team is 

working with suitable pan India recruitment drives. Man power planning has been done with 

discussion with respective Head of the Departments. Suitable advertisement is national 

newspapers, partnerships with recruitment agencies, referrals through word of mouth and other 

such tools are being utilized to employ suitable candidates at all levels.   

HR Rationalization

Looking forward to convert into Small Finance Bank, the HR is more focused on rationalization of 

grades, salary and profile of the employees. After employee pulse check survey the company is 

deliberating on competency and capability mapping of employees. Employees can choose 

different department and profile as per their capability to handle new roles.

Grades are being rationalized according to banking industry and all employees are communicated 

regarding the same to avoid dissatisfaction and misunderstanding. Salary and other benefits are 

also being rationalized according to industry norms. Employees are assured that there will be not 

be any cut in salary and other benefits, rather it could be better in the process. All employees are 

also assured regarding their job, there will be no lay off in coming days and all employee's job is 

well secured. In fact, the company is in recruitment spree thereby having a big opportunity for all 

existing employees.

0360  Appraisal

0The company has plans to implement a full-fledged 360  appraisal system in association of 

Microfinanza and KPMG Teams. 

Technology up gradation, capacity building of employees, linking training need of employees and 

revision of all HR policies as per banking norms shall remain the focus area in the ensuing Financial 

Year.

Training Initiatives

Keeping the pace and momentum of growth of the company, the Training Department also aligned 

its plans and strategies to firm up the training activities to ensure quality and confident employees 

at their workplace. 

The year was saw expansion and process improvement initiatives at the department. To start with 

the training infrastructure was improved at different training centers. New Regional Training 

Centers like in Jabalpur, Ranchi, Raipur and Bhagalpur became operational. To align with the 

business needs of the company in terms of new recruits training department was successful in 

providing adequate and quality Induction Training to 1,679 Trainee Grade (Fresher Candidates), 

who were successfully and deployed after completion of 10 days of robust training including the 

class room as well as field training sessions. Simultaneously the Reference Check activity by doing 
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a physical verification of documents 

including a visit to the native place of 

employees in the Trainee Grade was 

accomplished by the Training Team. 

Other than the Induction Training, the 

company a lso organized Refresher  

Trainings, Promotion Training and other 

Theme based trainings and Workshops. 

During the FY 2015-16, a total number of 

209 trainings were organized in which 

4,797 employees were trained. The training 

covered employees across all business, support and control functions posted at Branches, 

Divisional Offices, Regional Offices and Head Office including employees of Samutkarsh Welfare 

Services.

External Training and exposure has been always been important part of training. The company 

continuously identifies such training programs and nominated employees for the same. 

Employees across all grades attended such training programs. 

Through UPMA, a total of 14 employees undergone the external trainings. The minimum duration 

of these trainings have been two days and topics included Financial Analysis, Code of Conduct, 

Gender Development are the few to be named.

Behavioral and Soft skill trainings was the main focus of  the training department in the FY-2015-16 

and in this respect Utkarsh entered contract with Grameen Foundation India for providing 

leadership (LFTF- Leaders for the Field program) and Business Communications Program (BCP). In 

these two programs, a total of 78 employees in the grade of Senior Managers and above 

participated. The LFTF programme and deals with all the aspects of leadership development 

whereas BCP deals with the personality grooming and communication part of the self-

development.

Corporate Communications

Corporate Communications department scaled up its activities and established suitable 

interactions in the industry. It conducted the 1st ever National Seminar for Academia Stakeholders 

of the sector and also had various Sector Expert Visit Programs at various National Level 

Workshops and Conferences including colleges / institutes.

Internally, the department also launched an internal monthly magazine in the name of Utkarsh 

Gyan Darpan, as employee knowledge kit, which has been well received with active participation 

from employees. Other than this, the department focused on publications of pamphlets / 

brochures, Shareholder Communication, Utkarsh Voice  the quarterly Newsletter and Annual 

Report.

Sector veterans at Utkarsh Micro Finance Conference



37

The department also continuously interacts with employees through various platforms. In context 

of the transition to a Small Finance Bank, the department is now focusing on rebranding and 

repositioning of the organization in the changing environment. 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

With a mandate to increase process efficiency and hence have a smooth operations experience 

with better monitoring, the focus of the IT Department during the FY 2015-16 was to automate 

most of the field / back office / HR processes. Towards this following major initiatives that have 

been successfully implemented during the year:

+ Integration of Core Application with Credit Bureaus

Utkarsh follows the prudent norm of checking Credit Information Report (CIR) of every applicants 

before disbursing loans to them. To minimize turnaround time and to get instant CIR, the core 

solution has been integrated with database of both the Credit Bureaus, Equifax and CRIF 

Highmark. 

+ Mobile LOS (Loan Origination System) for JLG operation

Till last year field staffs were using mobile technology to update disbursement and post 

disbursement transactions in the field. During FY 2015-16, the usage of mobile technology has 

been extended to customer boarding and loan sanctioning processes as well. The usage of mobile 

LOS helped the company to move towards paperless banking.

+ Tablet to all field staffs for using mobile applications.

Company has issued tablets to all its field staffs to facilitate effective usage of mobile applications.

+ Complete HR solution

RAMCO HCM has been implemented for managing all HR related activities, hire to retire, in an 

efficient and effective manner. The solution also provide employee self-service facility to the 

employees.

+ ESOP solution

The company has also implemented ESOP solution from ESOP Direct for managing its ESOP 

scheme and provide its employee with a better experience in exercising and monitoring allotted 

ESOP.

+ Auto EOD / SOD process

Historically EOD (End of Day) / SOD (Start of Day) processes used to consume 4 to 5 hours of the 

IT admin team. To overcome this, IT vendor was approached to provide auto EOD / SOD process 

using which the processes can be management without human presence.

Insurance 

The specific objective of the Insurance Department is to develop strong insurance assessment and 

control system for organization and therefore engages in:
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' Formulation of Insurance Management Policy and Procedures.

' To have standardized process in Insurance Management.

' Documentation of Insurance management in the organization.

' Standardized claim database management and process.

Insurance Department at Utkarsh is responsible for all kind of Insurance for necessary risk 

mitigation. Insurance Department coordinated for effective and timely settlement of 4,320 (out of 

6,326) JLG product cases in FY 2015-16, and 145 (out of 201) cases in Health Insurance product. 

Claims amounting to more than `7.59 Mn were settled during the year. Insurance Department 

always strives to provide timely and responsible service to client as well as to employees. 

The 1st ever Meet of Academia Stakeholders at Utkarsh Micro Finance Conference, Varanasi
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Risk Management Function 

Utkarsh Micro Finance Pvt. Ltd. has a robust risk management mechanism in place. The Risk 

management approach is adopted considering potential risk associated with the Micro finance 

operations and Micro Enterprise Loan (MEL) functions. Risk Management in Utkarsh is proactive 

and dynamic keeping in view the changing regulatory framework, competitive environment and 

growing complexities of operations. 

Utkarsh adopts the following approach under its risk management functions:

Periodic Risk Review based on respective risk Appetite: 

Based on Risk appetite limits with respect to Credit risk, Operational risk, Liquidity, and Interest rate 

risk, risk status is reviewed by the Management Level Risk Committee (MLRC) of Utkarsh on 

monthly basis.

Key Risk Indicators for functional departments:

Key Risk Indicators (KRIs) identified for all the functional departments like Field Operations - JLG 

and MEL, HR and Trainings, Corporate Compliance, IT and MIS, Accounting, Internal audit and 

Corporate Communication. Risk team collects the monthly key risk indicator through nodal risk 

officer of each department and submits its report to Management level risk committee with key 

area of intervention. 

Co-ordination of Risk Management department with internal audit and vigilance team:

Risk Management team work closely with the Internal Audit and Vigilance Team to identify trends 

in the key audit indicator impacting risk and trigger points in Key Risk Indicators (KRIs) or risk 

events identified and prompts a request to the Internal Audit or Vigilance Team to investigate the 

issue. 

Data sources for Risk Management: 

Comprehensive risk database is developed for effective Risk analytics. This data base facilitates 

efficient system of data collection, storage and analysis. The basic data sources are MIS database, 

Internal Audit observations, financial Data, data from MFIN and data from local newspapers.

Risk Reports for Risk Management Committee:

The risk reports are submitted to management level risk committee on monthly basis which covers 

risk status reports, Report on the Key Risk Indicators (KRIs), Special reports on investigations, 

process reviews or trends emerging from data analysis. 

Risk analyst / nodal person for each functional department:

To strengthen departmental Risk Management, a nodal Risk Analyst is assigned for each functional 

CONTROL FUNCTIONS
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department. The officer is responsible to generate required reports for their respective 

departments on Key Risk Indicators and coordinate with the Risk Management team for action to 

be taken in case thresholds are breached.

Risk advisory for functional areas

The Risk Management team periodically reviews processes and policies in various functional 

departments and provide suggestions for improvement.

Risk review of new products, processes and geographical areas

Risk Management team reviews new products, processes and geographical areas to assess risks 

and give suitable recommendations.

Risk workshops

To create effective risk culture in the organization risk management team coordinates with the 

trainings team to organize workshops for staff at various level. 

Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) and Individual Credit Ratings:

It is proposed to establish ICAAP process to assess capital requirements for various risk 

categories. This will be in accordance with Basel-III recommendations for the banks. It is further 

planned that a system of credit rating of individuals will be developed on the basis of attendance, 

increase in loan amount, rating of centers and instance of hidden delinquency. This rating can be 

used for credit appraisal.

Internal Audit

The Internal Audit Department (IAD) at Utkarsh focusses on providing independent assurance on 

the process implementation including the overall adequacy of the internal control system and 

compliance as per extant policies and guidelines. It also aims to highlight early warning signals 

thereby adding value and efficiency within the company by mitigating the possibilities of 

malpractices. 

All the business and support functions 

at Utkarsh, be at Branches or at any 

administrative offices are subjected to a 

strong internal audit scrutiny every 

quarter. 

During the FY 2015-16, a total 1,508 

audits runs were conducted at 312 JLG 

Branches (1,078 Comprehensive Audits 

and 430 Short Audits).  A total of 16,592 

centers meetings covering 27.43% of 

total center meetings and 36,149 Active 

Loan Clients (ALC) amounting to 3.63% 

of the total ALC of the company were 
Executive Committee Meeting in-progress
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audited during the FY. On the basis of audit observations and finding during Comprehensive Audit, 

the Branches are categorized into grade A, B, C or D. In FY 15-16, 88.77% of branches qualified for 

Grade A and B. During the FY 2015-16, all MEL branches were audited once in each quarter. Cross 

Audits of the Audit, which was started in the FY 2014-15 was also continued in FY 2015-16.

Comprehensive Audit format and Branch Audit Score Sheet were further fine-tuned during the 

year to incorporate the learnings from the field and also to incorporate changes in the Utkarsh's 

policy and processes. To highlight the critical observations during the audit, an Audit synopsis is 

prepared and brought to the notice of concerned Regional Managers for a quick resolution. 

Observations and its resolutions provided by Regional Managers are compiled and presented to 

Senior Management twice a month. 

Audit team scrutinizes the Non-Operations Departments on quantitative as well as qualitative 

aspects including engagement quality, Target Resolution Time (TRT) adherence and resolution 

quality. Audit of Non-Operations Department is conducted on quarterly basis at the Head Office of 

the company. During FY 15-16, 38 audit of Non-Operations Departments were conducted.

An integrated employee action and escalation matrix has been developed and implemented. This 

tool helps in categorization of deviation observed in field and in fixing the responsibility. 

In FY 2015-16, IAD started quarterly meeting with JLG Operations Team (including Regional 

Managers and Divisional Heads) at Regional level for quick resolution of audit observations. All 

regions were covered during the FY 15-16. Monthly meeting and training of Auditors were 

conducted at Hubs throughout the year. 

In the ensuing FY 2016-17, the IAD plans to further strengthen its team strength with intense focus 

on training and developments of auditors. IAD also plans to introduce a tab-based Audit approach 

in order to digitize the Audit process and to integrate it with overall MIS structure of the company. 

It will bring in efficiency and will ensure proper maintenance of MIS with smooth functioning of 

Audit department. 

Vigilance & Security 

The company had setup the Vigilance and Security Department in FY 2014-15, which is generally 

unheard of in the microfinance domain. The department started functioning in a full-fledged way 

from the FY 2015-16. The department has already put initial processes in place. A “Vigilance 

Manual” with the objective to enhance transparency, accountability and efficiency in the 

organization has been created.

During the FY, the Vigilance system in Utkarsh through its employees have been strengthened. A 

”Whistle Blower Policy” have been implemented to encourage stakeholders i.e. employees, 

customers etc. to bring in to the notice of organization any concerns involving compromise / 

violation of ethical norms, legal or regulatory provisions etc. without any fear of reprisal, 

retaliation, discrimination or harassment of any kind whatsoever.

The scope of the department would increase manifold, especially when the company starts 
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operating as a Small Finance Bank. The 

department is placing in place suitable 

strategies to meet the requirements for 

ensuring highest standard of safe guard 

for public trust at all times and in all 

circumstances.

The department is working to sensitize 

all its employees on having the right 

vigilance acumen, feel consciously 

responsible and fight by creating much 

needed awareness on vigilance aspects 

through periodical workshops and 

training programme.

Vigilance department is committed to 

point out and identify any mala fide 

handling of the company money, violation of rules / norms as prescribed by the bank, and further 

to detect misconducts which shakes the trust and faith of our stake holders there by to promote 

and cultivate culture of Honesty and an ethical environment to ensure integrity at all levels to bring 

quality and excellence at work place in the organization. 

Grievance Redressal Mechanism

It is one of the priorities of the company to provide complete and accurate information to all the 

members regarding all products and services offered. It is ensured that all financial and non-

financial transactions and processes are communicated to the clients in a prompt and lucid 

manner. Any change in the processes / policies is also informed to the clients sufficiently in 

advance. The company also strives to ensure that its clients get the best service at all times and 

the branch officials interact with the clients on a regular basis. The Company believes that clients' 

satisfaction is at the core of its existence and clients must be served proactively beyond their 

expectations.

To address such instances the company has instituted a full-fledged Grievance Redressal 

Department to achieve the following objectives of the company which also from an integral part of 

its Mission and Vision.

! All clients are treated in a fair and unbiased manner.

! All grievances raised by clients are responded with courtesy and resolved in a time bound 

manner.

! The clients are given complete information of their rights so that they can use all the available 

mediums for the resolution of their grievances.

Community Financial Awareness Camp through Magic Show

MD & CEO addressing Senior Management on 

core DNA of the Company - Culture, Process and Growth!
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Client Interaction and Client Grievance Redressal Process -

Level 1  At Branch

! Branch Phone - The clients can register their complaints on the Branch Manager's mobile phone 

number mentioned in the Center File on all working days between 9:30 AM and 6:30 AM.

Complaint Register - The clients can also register their complaints in the Complaint Register 

present in the branch.

Level 2 - At Head Office

! Complaint Box at Branch - A Complaint / Suggestion drop box is present in every branch in 

conspicuous location. The branch personnel do not have access to this box. The clients can also 

drop their complaints / feedbacks on the basis of anonymity via this medium. The key to the box 

remains with Internal Audit team and the letters in the box directly reach Grievance Redressal 

team in HO.

! Toll Free Number - There is a 3-channel Toll-free number instituted at the Head Office of the 

company which is manned by a team of grievance redressal officers supervised by a senior 

official in the grade of Chief Manager. The Toll-free number provides clients direct access to the 

management at the Corporate Office in Varanasi. The Toll-free number is well-advertised, being 

displayed at each branch and also being present on each Loan Card that is issued to the clients. 

The Toll-free number is backed by cloud based technology in the form of a customized EPABX 

system. The system allows for recording of the conversations of each call. This is stored on 

cloud and can be retrieved by Utkarsh at any point.

! Landline - The Landline number is printed on each Loan Card that is issued to the clients. 

This Landline is manned by the grievance redressal officers.

Clients can register their complaints through the Toll-free number / Landline from Monday to 

Friday between 7:00 AM and 5:00 PM and on Saturday between 9:30 AM and 1:30 AM.

Level 3  Chief Grievance Redressal Officer

The contact detail of the Chief Grievance Redressal Officer is mentioned at each branch on the 

Complaint box.

RBI Nodal Officer 

In accordance with RBI Circular No. DNBS.CC.PD.No.320/03.10.01/2012-13 dated February 18, 

2013, the name and address of the RBI Nodal Officer for NBFCs is displayed prominently on the 

Notice Board of all the branches of the company.

Registration of Grievance

! All the incidents reaching the Grievance Redressal Department at HO are recorded in an 

automated database.
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! The Incidents are classified on the basis of enquiries / Complaints and sub  classified on the 

basis of nature of enquiries / complaints.

! Quick Kill enquiries / Complaints are resolved instantly and closed in the data base.

! Incidents where instant resolution is not possible are escalated to different departments as per a 

define escalation matrix. Each such escalated incident has a define Target Resolution Time (TRT) 

which is followed very rigorously and 

dev ia t ions  a re  mon i to red  and  

escalated to Grievance Committee 

and Senior Management.

! A query once resolved is confirmed to 

the client / complainant and the 

incident is closed only after closing 

the feedback loop.

! The Grievance Redressal Department 

of the company is also audited every 

three months by the Internal Audit 

Department and its report is present 

to Senior Management.

! The Audit scrutinizes the department on quantitative as well as qualitative aspects including 

engagement quality, Target Resolution Time adherence and resolution quality.

Community Financial Awareness Camp of Magic Show 
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1. Mobile Van Polyclinic 

2. ESOP Direct

3. Affordable Housing Loan 

4. Specialised Training for Middle 

Management

5. Social Data Analysis (SPM 

Department)

6. Introduction of TAB for JLG loan 

disbursement

1. Mobile Van Polyclinic 

In order to overcome the geographical constraints of the regular polyclinics presently being 

conducted across 8 branches, the Company tied-up with Ramkrishna Sevashram, Mirzapur to 

provide Primary Health Care Services through Mobile Van. 

Under this new initiative, the mobile van travels about 200 kms to a base location from where it 

covers 5 remote branches on five consecutive days. These polyclinics are held every fortnight and 

the beneficiaries are provided free medical consultations and medicines by qualified doctors.

This service was started in August 2015 from 5 branches of Kushinagar Division Dudahi, Tamkuhi 

Road, Siswa Bazar, Kaptanganj and Pipraich. The average number of patients examined during 

these camps is 150. 

In February, 2016 the Mobile Van Service was further extended to 5 branches of Satna Division  

Satna, Amarpattan, Maihar, Mangawan and Mauganj. Till March 31, 2016  the Mobile Van Polyclinic 

had made 91 visits and 14,093 patients had benefitted from the same.

2. ESOP Direct

During the year 2015-16, Utkarsh has tied-up with ESOP Direct (a leading facilitator in online ESOP 

solution) and moved all its ESOP data online for the ease of its employees. This move has enabled 

the employees to check their ESOP details online and has also enabled them to subscribe their 

vested options through online mode.

The software also provides various other tools keeping in mind the interest of the employees such 

as ESOP status, wealth creation, what if analysis, etc. Software generated reminder mails has also 

been incorporated in the software to remind the employees about their options due to vest / expire 

so as to enable them to exercise the options in a timely manner.

MD & CEO addressing on preparedness for 

Small Finance Bank Transition at Company's Annual Event 

NEW INITIATIVES DURING FY 2015-16
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3. Affordable Housing Loan (AHL)

Housing is considered as a basic need of human being apart from food and cloths. Poor housing 

conditions has adverse impact on the low-income groups, which not only affects the health but 

also the income generation, asset creation, social status and overall development of household.

Finance for the low income group is one of the important constraint to have access to the good 

housing condition and current prevalent housing finance mechanism have not been able to meet 

the requirement of lower income group and economically weaker section. They find it difficult to 

get the access of finance from formal housing finance companies because they are considered as 

below the 'viable' threshold to ensure repayment or those who cannot provide collateral for loans.

The company believes that a better living condition has major impact on the life of the people and 

it not only improves the living condition but also has a positive impact on the productivity. A better 

productivity will further lead to increase in income and improvement in the assets base of the 

household. 

The company through range of JLG products has been able to improve the income of its clients 

and now clients are looking for some other financial products and housing is prominent among 

them. Apart from our existing clients, there are households in our catchment area which income 

level is above our target level but have requirement for housing loans. 

Considering all these facts, the company forayed into housing loan through starting pilot at 2 

locations i.e. at Nagpur and Varanasi. In the current financial year, company disbursed housing 

loan to the 72 clients and total amount disbursed was `20.6 Mn. The portfolio outstanding as on 

March 31, 2016 was 20.2 Mn.  In the next financial year company is planning to launch the product 

Bihar and further expansion in UP, MP and, Maharashtra. 

4. Specialised Training for Middle Management

 New Initiatives were taken by Utkarsh to enhance the skill and learning process of its employees. 

This year the focus was to develop the leadership and business communication skills especially 

of the middle management and to enhance the sectorial knowledge of the officers and the 

employees in the executive grade. For this purpose several in-house trainings as well as external 

training initiative was facilitated by Utkarsh. Some of the important initiatives can be 

summarized as follows:

 a. Leadership Development Program:  

  Under this flagship programme of Grameen Foundation India, the training was provided to 

Middle Management employees in two modes. One was with direct agreement with 

Grameen Foundation through with 38 employees in the grade of Chief Managers to Deputy 

Vice President participated in the training in two batches.  While 7 employees in the same 

grade participated in the same programme which was funded by SIDBI and organized by 

Grameen Foundation as an external training.
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 b. Business Communications Programme: 

  This programme focused on employees in the grade of Senior Managers to Assistant Vice 

President and a total of 40 employees participated in the programme which was again in-

house training with Grameen Foundation being the technical partner. Business 

Communication Program (BCP) is designed for people who need to develop credibility and 

build relationship quickly at workplace, but who face issues understanding and expressing 

ideas clearly. Apart from the communication concepts, this program also has elements of 

personality development. 

  Both these program focuses on the practical application of various leadership and 

communication concepts. Both the programme are of the duration of three months which 

consist of two class room trainings each of two days, one in the beginning of the course and 

other at the end of the course which is done at the completion of three months from the start 

of the first class room training. The three months of training incorporates all the dimension of 

self-learning like case study, self-analysis, project writing etc. Depending on the assignment 

and participation level the trainees have been certified as Leaders in the category of A+, A, B 

and C grades for the LFTF Programme. BCP participants are just certified but not graded.

 c. External Training on various topics of Micro Finance sector: 

  During the FY 2015-16, the company nominated its employees for various external trainings 

from Micro Finance Association of Uttar Pradesh (UPMA), MFIN and other such agencies. 

 d. Learning Series for the Head office based employees: 

  The company also introduced new initiative for enhancing the knowledge of various support 

and control functions at Head office. The target group in this training were non-sales 

employees in the grade of Executive to Senior Managers and the main topics covered in the 

training were related to micro finance sector - origin and journey of microfinance, transition 

from micro finance to Small Finance Bank.

 e. Training of Trainers: 

  During the FY 2015-16, a Training of Trainers (TOT) program of 3 days by two institutions viz. 

Global Talent Company and HRDC, both based out of Delhi-NCR. The TOT was focused on 

various skills and techniques required to become effective trainer.  

5. Social Data Analysis 

(SPM Department)

As a special assignment, a pilot for 

social data review of all the new 

disbursement in two branches Sindhora 

and Narainpur was conducted during 

October and November 2015. The 

objective of the review was to judge the 

social (profile) status of our target Utkarsh Annual Event in-progress 
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clients. This was done through internal 'social data assessment questionnaire', developed with the 

help of Oiko credit. The information was collected to review the validity of the questionnaire also. 

These data will form the base line for comparison of change in clients profile over a period of time. 

After collection of such data comprehensive analysis of data quality and relevancy was 

established. Preliminary finding was presented for the management perusal. The company is in 

process of implementation of questionnaire in its proposed CBS client profile module. This will 

facilitate the collection of basic social data so that analysis can be done and change in social 

(profile) status of our target clients can be analyzed for suitable policy framing.

6. Introduction of TAB for JLG loan disbursement  

In order to have real time data flow, thereby improving efficiency with real time monitoring by 

supervisors and a better control on information for management, the company implemented 

mobile technology for its Loan Originating System (LOS) and Loan Management System (LMS).

The company had successfully rolled out mobile applications like “Trucell” for LMS in FY 2014-15 

and “GLOW” for LOS during FY 2015-16. The benefit of updating transaction / capturing various 

other data using mobile applications are as follows:

! Real time updates of financial (like disbursement, collection, pre-closure) and non-financial 

transactions (like Attendance, Loan utilization Checks)

! Reduced turnaround time

! Daily closures of business

! Real time tracking of collection and disbursement

! Efficient monitoring of collections, LUC, etc. by supervisors through use of mobile reports.

! Reduction in operational errors due to close tracking.

! Real time updates of field activities/data entry of all the staffs

! Reduced turnaround time from client profiling to loan disbursement

! Efficient monitoring of all field level activities by supervisors through use of mobile reports.

! Reduction in operational errors due to maker-checker concept.

Considering the ease of using mobile applications by field staffs and various security parameters 

required to implement on the device, the company provided tablets to all its field staffs. As a 

security measure, all the tablets are registered under a centralized control panel which helps the 

management to control the device to restrict unauthorized usage.
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Utkarsh scaled up its Corporate Social 

Responsibility Activities by contributing 

2% of the Profit Before Taxes and other 

suppor t  to  Samutka rsh  We l f a re  

Services, a section 25 company.  The 

geographical outreach of the credit plus 

initiatives has spread to 50 branches of 

7 regions in 3 States. This year the 

primary focus has been on Financial 

Literacy, Health, and Vocational Training. 

 

A. Financial literacy:

 In order to create financial awareness in rural and semi-urban areas, the company has a 

comprehensive financial literacy program.

 The program focuses on financial planning, cash-flow, savings, budgeting, banking, insurance 

and investment including Government initiatives like PMJDY, PM Suraksha Bima Yojana, PM 

Jeevan Jyoti Bima Yojana, Atal Pension Yojana & Sukanya Samriddhi Yojana.  

 The outreach of the different Financial Literacy programs is detailed below:

 1. International Finance Corporation (IFC) - Utkarsh Project 

  This project is operational through 9 branches spanning across 6 districts of Uttar Pradesh 

and Bihar. Under this project, 19,856 beneficiaries have been trained by March 31, 2016.

 2. Swiss Capacity Building Facility (SCBF) - ACCION Project

  Under this project 11,689 beneficiaries have been trained by March 31, 2016 through 5 

branches.

 3. Small Industries Development Bank of India (SIDBI) PSIG Project 

  The objective of this project is to provide 30 hours training to 16,500 members on financial 

literacy and women empowerment. This project is operational through 16 branches in 5 

districts of Uttar Pradesh and Bihar. As on March 31, 2016, this training has been successfully 

provided to 15,741 beneficiaries.

 4. Samutkarsh Financial Literacy Project

  This project is operational through 9 nodal branches across 4 districts of Uttar Pradesh and 

Madhya Pradesh. As on March 31, 2016, this project had successfully reached 5,842 

beneficiaries for the financial literacy program.

Community Financial Awareness Camp through Video Show

CREDIT PLUS ACTIVITIES: HIGHLIGHTS OF FY 2015-16
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Community Based Financial Awareness Camps 

The village level financial awareness programs are conducted by engaging with the community. 

Suitable tools are adopted to disseminate the information and impart the training. These include 

Magic Shows, Theatre Model Programs and session through Mahila Mandals. During the FY 2015-

16, a total of 17 such programs were organized covering 6,792 beneficiaries. 

B. Health Initiatives:

 1. Regular Polyclinics at Branches

  In order to provide primary health care facilities in remote areas where such facilities are not 

available at ease, the company has tied up with two hospitals - Ramkrishna Sewashram, 

Mirzapur and G V Meditech, Varanasi. These hospitals operate polyclinics at fortnight basis 

through branches. The community can access free medical consultancy and medication. 

During FY 2015-16, these polyclinics were operational 147 times in 8 branches and 10,938 

patients benefitted from the same.

 2. Mobile Van-Polyclinic

  With the view to extend primary health care facilities even in the remotest areas, the 

company launched polyclinic camps through Mobile Vans. Presently, this service is available 

through 10 nodal branches of Kushinagar and Satna Division. As on March 31, 2016, 91 such 

camps were organized and 14,093 patients had been benefitted from the same. 

C. Goodwill Projects: 

 1. Nirmala Shishu Bhawan & Nirmal Hriday

  These are institutes for differently-abled and mentally challenged abandoned children and 

adults, run by the Mission Sisters of Charity. The company supports these homes by 

sponsoring meals and providing them with some of their daily need items. The employees 

of Utkarsh and Samutkarsh actively participate in this project through regular team visits.

 2. Blood Donation

  The company organizes regular Blood Donation camps in association with IMA Blood Bank 

under the aegis of Pratima Charitable Foundation, Varanasi. Employees of Utkarsh and 

Samutkarsh jointly volunteer for such camps making it a success each time. 

D. Vocational Training: Agarbatti Making

 The vocational training on agarbatti making was started for creating an enabling environment 

for an alternate source of income for the beneficiaries i.e. as an income generating activity.  

During the FY 15-16, the total production of Agarbatti by vocational trainees was 771.5 kgs;  

the scented Agarbatti production being 283.5 kgs and raw agarbatti production being 620 kgs. 

The company also provides market linkage support to trainees for selling these agarbattis. With 

competition from imported and cheaper agarbattis in the market and also lukewarm response 

from trainees, the company has decided not to scale up this activity further.

 In the ensuing financial year the company shall focus on Education and Health initiatives. 



A) Board Meeting and Committees

Meeting of Board of Directors (Status 

as on March 31, 2016)

The following sub committees have 

been constituted for the deliberations of 

the board members:

a. Audit Committee

 Oversight of the company's financial 

reporting process and the disclosure 

of its financial information to ensure 

that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible

 Members:

 1. Ms. Ramni Nirula, Independent Director

 2. Mr. Tantra Narayan Thakur, Independent Director

 3. Mr. Vishal Mehta, Nominee Director

b. Compensation Committee:   

 Framing suitable policies and systems and fixing and revision of remuneration payable to the 

Managing and Whole-time Directors annually:

 Members:

 1. Mr. Knut Frigaard, Nominee Director

 2. Ms. Ramni Nirula, Independent Director

 3. Mr. Srinivasan Nagarajan, Nominee Director

 4. Mr. Tantra Narayan Thakur, Independent Director

c. Committee for Corporate Governance:

 Review and make recommendations to the Board annually with respect to the composition, 

size and needs of the Board. 

 Members:

 1. Ms. Ramni Nirula, Independent Director

 2. Ms. Shubhalakshmi A Panse, Independent Director

 3. Mr. Govind Singh, MD & CEO 

Board Members with Investor representatives and

Top Management of the company

COMMITTEES OF THE COMPANY
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d.  Resourcing Committee:  

 The role of Committee is Resourcing Committee which will look into and approve all types of 

resources required to be raised by the Company from time to time to meet the various 

requirements.

 Members:

 1. Mr. Vishal Mehta, Nominee Director 

 2. Mr. Govind Singh, MD & CEO

 3. Mr. Trilok Nath Shukla, Whole-Time Director 

e. Assets and Liability Management Committee (ALCO): 

 As per the RBI circular, NBFC having an asset size of `100 crore or above as on the date of last 

audited balance sheet is required to constitute Assets and Liabilities Management Committee 

(ALCO) to monitor the asset liquidity gap and strategies action to mitigate the risk associated.

 Members:

 1. Mr. Tantra Narayan Thakur, Independent Director 

 2. Mr. Vishal Mehta, Nominee Director 

 3. Mr. Govind Singh, MD & CEO

 4. Mr. Abhisheka Kumar, Chief Financial Officer

f.  Nomination Committee:  

 As per the RBI guideline and circular no. RBI/2011-12/28DNBS(PD)CC No.234/03.10.001/201112 

dated July 1, 2011, NBFC having an asset size of `500  crore or above as on the date of last 

audited balance sheet is advised to constitute Nomination Committee  to ensure 'fit & proper' 

status of proposed/existing Directors.

 Members:

 1. Ms. Ramni Nirula, Independent Director

 2. Ms. Shubhalakshmi A Panse, Independent Director

 3. Mr. Govind Singh, MD & CEO

g. CSR Committee

 As per Clause 135 of new Companies Act, 2013, Companies having turnover of `1,000 crore or 

more, or net worth of `00 crore or more, or net profit of `5 crore or more shall constitute a CSR 

Committee of the Board constituting of three or more directors, out of which at least one 

Director shall be an Independent Director. 
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 Members:

 1. Mr. Tantra Narayan Thakur, Independent Director

 2. Mr. Trilok Nath Shukla, Whole  Time Director 

 3. Ms. Shruti Agarwalla, Non-Board Member

h. Share Allotment Committee 

 The main function of this committee is to make allotment of share. The Committee meets on 

requirement basis.

 Members:

 1. Mr. Nagarajan Srinivasan, Nominee Director   

 2. Ms. Sushma Kaushik, Nominee Director 

 3. Mr. Govind Singh, MD & CEO  

i. Risk Management Committee 

 The main function of this committee is to review the functioning of the risk management team 

and set the directions to take appropriate actions given changing business environment and 

business realities.

 Members:

 1. Ms. Shubhalakshmi A Panse, Independent Director 

 2. Ms. Sushma Kaushik, Nominee Director   

 3. Mr. Govind Singh, MD & CEO  

j. High Value Project Level Committee 

 This committee shall review and approve the proposal having value of `50 lakh to `3 crore and 

proposal below `50 lakh shall be approved by the EC members of the management level of the 

committee. The proposed expenditure would include all project expenditure related to civil / 

electrical work contract/ real estate for office purpose/ IT Software. The committee shall review 

and consider any other aspects of the proposed project which includes service provider and 

other control measures. Technical feasibility and viability report to be presented to the 

committee. Must fit and align with the long term business plan and goals of the company. The 

committee may call for technical details from outside/independent party/service providers.

 Members:

 1. Ms. Shubhalakshmi A Panse, Independent Director 

 2. Ms. Sushma Kaushik, Nominee Director   

 3. Mr. Govind Singh, MD & CEO  
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k. Equity Investment Committee 

 The main function of this committee is to deal with the equity investment transactions in the 

company. The Committee shall meet on need basis.

 Members:

 1. Ms. Sushma Kaushik, Nominee Director 

 2. Mr. Vishal Mehta, Nominee Director    

 3. Mr. Govind Singh, MD & CEO

 4. Mr. Abhisheka Kumar, Chief Financial Officer

B) The Company has the following executive committees for appropriate decision making and 

implementation: 

a. The Customer Grievance Redressal Committee 

 The committee meets monthly to receive and redress the customer grievances; this committee 

meets at monthly interval. One Telephone line has been dedicated in Head Office for customer 

grievance and the same no. is published in passbook issued to the clients for wide publicity.

b. Executive Committee 

 The Committee meets once in a month and deliberates on various developments and policy 

matters. The committee also reviews various aspects of operations of the company and 

decisions taken by various sub committees. 

c. Purchase Committee 

 This committee approves any purchase of more than `10,000/- at one time or any purchase 

where estimated expenditure is expected to be more than `10,000/- per annum. This covers 

purchases of capital as well as revenue nature. Besides these committees, Company holds 

monthly meetings with all level of staff to understand and communicate with all concerned.

d. Premises Committee 

 The committee meets monthly to approve the proposed premises to be taken on rent for 

establishing branch offices, other offices and Guest House, etc.

e. Internal Complaint Committee  

 ICC meets quarterly to ensure that there are no biases among the employees and there is no 

harassment to any of the employees of the company. Any issue of gender inequality is 

expected to be brought to the committee for deliberations & recommending appropriate action. 
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f. Workmen Committee 

 The Committee meets once in an every quarter and resolving the problems of the worker, if any 

with the company. Workmen Committee submitted their report to Executive committee. 

g. Investment Committee 

 The committee meets once in every month and approves all the investments beyond `5 crore. 

Investment Committee submits the report in turn to the Board. 

h. Credit Committee - MEL

 The Committee approves / sanctions MEL Loans. Quorum of the meetings is any two members. 

The meetings are held through conference calls, where credit manager presents the case for 

approval to the Credit Committee. 

i. Employee Award Committee 

 The main role of the committee is to recommend awards for employees. The awards are 

adjudged based on various performance parameters. 

j. Recreation Committee 

 The Main objective of this committee is to promote employee engagement through various 

activities like celebrating festivals, organizing picnic and other employee related engagement 

etc. 

k. Suggestion Committee 

 This Committee meets once in every month review the suggestions and further advices the 

Executive Committee on policy level changes and process improvement if any. Suggestion 

Committee submitted their report to Executive committee. 

l. Credit Plus Management Committee

 The Committee meets once in quarterly and the main role of this committee is to review, plan 

and guide the social intervention of the company. 

m. Employee Grievance Committee 

 The committee meets once in every month and the main role of Employee Grievance 

Committee is to consider the Employee Grievance, satisfaction and feedback. Employee 

Grievance Committee submits its report to Executive Committee. 
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C) Shareholders Meetings

a. Annual General Meeting of Share Holders:

 Meeting of the shareholders are conducted on an annual basis to transact the following 

business as per the Companies Act 2013.

b. Extra Ordinary Annual General Meeting of Shareholders:

 EGM is conducted for getting approval from the shareholders for the matters arising between 

the periods of two annual meetings.

Team Utkarsh at Kite Flying Event on the occasion of Makar Sankranti



57

To,

The Members

Utkarsh Micro Finance Pvt Ltd.

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their seventh Annual Report on the business and 

operations and audited accounts of the Company for the Financial Year ending March 31, 2016.

Financial Highlights

The Summarised financial results of the Company for the financial year ending March 31, 2016 are 

as under:

The Company posted Profit before Tax of `61.11 crores and Profit after Tax of `36.80 crore for the 

year ended on March 31, 2016, as against Profit Before Tax of `26.47 crores and Profit after Tax of 

`16.02 crores respectively for the previous year. 

Dividend

The Company has made dividend payment of 

`30.81 lakhs, excluding dividend distribution 

tax, for the f inancial year 2015-16 on 

redemption of cumulative non-convertible 

compulsorily redeemable preference shares 

( 'CNCRPS')”.  However,  no dividend is 

proposed on common equity. 

Appropriation & Reserves

Apart from the Statutory Reserve @ 20% of 

PAT, the Board does not propose any other 

reserve to be set aside. 

Performance of the Company

The Company attained higher business 

performance by reaching out to 1 million 

active loan clients as on March 31, 2016. JLG 

active loan clients grew from 6,01,465 as on 

March 31, 2015 to 9, 95, 810 as on March 31, 

2016. The growth in active loan clients during 

the year was more than 65%.
An Utkarsh client preparing garlands of success

DIRECTORS' REPORT
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The JLG portfolio outstanding has 

increased by 94% to `1343.3 crores as 

on March 31, 2016 vis-a-vis `692.28 

crores as on March 31, 2015.

The above was possible with excellent 

efforts of the Company's more than 

2,600 employees (as on March 31, 2016 

which was 1,753 as on March 31, 2015) 

through 321 JLG Branches. During the 

year under review, the Company started 

81 new branches. The Company started 

operations in 33 new Districts and 2 new 

States, i.e. Chhattisgarh & Jharkhand. 

Besides, the Company increased its 

branch network in the existing States.

Further, during the year the Company's Micro Enterprise Loan (MEL) client base also grew more 

than double from 6,823 to 14,326 and portfolio outstanding increased from `35.8 Crores to `87.12 

crores with 21 branches across 6 States.

The Company introduced Affordable Housing Loan (AHL) product during the financial year and 

under this new product, it funded 72 clients in the initial pilot phase through two branches in 

Varanasi and Nagpur with portfolio outstanding of `2.02 crores.

Overall loan portfolio of the Company increased from `728.09 crore at the end of March 31, 2015 

to `1432.48 crores at the end of March 31, 2016, registering overall growth of 96%.

JLG will continue to remain focused product of the Company under asset segment. Besides, 

MSME and Affordable Housing Loan will be offered to the clients with enhanced features in terms 

of ticket size and coverage.

The Company continued serving 34,143 National Pension System (NPS) clients during the FY 

2015-16 vis-à-vis 34,015 clients during FY 2014-15. Their subscription increased marginally from 

`1.02 crores to `1.18 crores. NPS is currently undergoing changes to Atal Pension Yojana (APY). 

Therefore, there has been very limited new client sourcing under NPS vertical.

The Company was granted 'in principle' licence by the Reserve Bank of India to set up Small 

Finance Bank (SFB) within 18 months from date of issuance of notification. The Company is taking 

all necessary steps to commence banking operations much earlier than stipulated time. Various 

liabilities products and third party products will be offered to clients upon commencement of 

banking operations by the Company.

The Company has hired KPMG to assist and advice in transitioning to Small Finance Bank, it 

engaged Intellect Design Arena Limited and AGS Transact Technology Ltd. to provide Core 

Banking and payment solutions respectively to support banking operations.

An Utkarsh client assembling the threads

of hard work and determination
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Various new departments are being created to meet the need of transition into the Bank and also 

various departments are being expanded in this direction.

No material changes and commitments occurred between the end of the financial year of the 

Company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report affecting the financial 

position of the Company.

During the year under review, no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts 

or tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company's operations in the future.

Internal Financial Controls:

The Company has adequate internal controls in terms of well-set Internal Audit, Risk Management, 

Responsible Finance & Social Performance Management, Credit and Client Interaction department, 

which is in commensurate to the size of the Company and nature of business. 

Internal Audit department adds value and efficiency within the Company and also mitigates the 

possibilities of malpractices. The objective of department is to provide independent, objective 

assurance to the management that it will add value and improve operations.

Considering the dynamics and size of the Micro Finance, Risk Management is a critical part of 

business model.  The business activities expose the Company to Reputational, Credit, Operational, 

Liquidity and Market related risk. The Risk Management Framework of the Company comprises 

Risk Governance, Risk Policies, Risk Reports and Risk culture.

Being a Responsible Finance organization, your Company is committed to ensure its responsibility 

towards Clients, Employees, Society and the Environment. Responsible Finance department 

ensures compliance of all the Client Protection Principles and have no adverse impact on 

environment through its operations and report all the social data to the Board on regular basis.

Credit and Client Interaction department is dedicated to provide appropriate grievance redressal 

mechanism to clients. It further ensures that clients are protected from being over-indebted 

through appropriate Credit Bureau practices. 

As a prudent practice, the Company has also set up Vigilance and Security Department during the 

year to be more vigil and ensure apt security of its people, premises and portfolio.

Accordingly Directors declare that -

As per provisions of 134 (5) Companies Act 2013 the Company has laid down Internal Financial 

Control and such Internal Financial Controls are adequate and operating effectively.

The Audit Committee also evaluates the Internal Financial Controls, as required under provisions 

of Section 177 (4) (vii) of the Companies Act, 2013.
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Subsidiary / Joint Venture / Associate Company

The Company do not have any Subsidiary or Joint Venture or Associate Company. However, The 

Company is undertaking its CSR activities through Samutkarsh Welfare Service, a Section 25 

Company (not for profit). 

Deposits

The Company is Non Deposit taking Company (NBFC-ND-SI) and has not accepted any deposits 

during the financial year 2015-16. Further, the Directors had also passed a circular resolution 

confirming that your Company would not accept any deposits during the year 2015-16, as per 

Regulatory requirement.

Statutory Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 and 141 of the companies Act, 2013, M/s. BSR and 

Associates, LLP was appointed as Statutory Auditor of the Company for five years i.e. up to the 

financial year 2019-20. 

The Statutory Auditor has confirmed their willingness and eligibility to continue as Statutory 

Auditor of the Company, as required under Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Board recommends the ratification of M/s. BSR and Associates, LLP as Statutory Auditor of 

the Company at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

Auditors' Report

The Auditors' report on the audited accounts of the Company for the financial year ended on 

March 31, 2016 is self-explanatory and do not require any further explanations or comments on 

any qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer.

Share Capital

During the year under review, the Company has issued 4,89,558 Sweat Equity Shares to Mr. 

Govind Singh, Managing Director & CEO. 

Issue of Employee Stock Options

In order to motivate and reward the employees of the Company, it has a Board approved ESOP 

policy. During Financial Year 2015-16, as per terms of the said Policy total 89,889 Shares were 

allotted to the eligible employees. 

Conservation of energy:

The Company adopts Responsible Finance Approach, thereby ensuring its commitment towards 

Clients, Employees and Community & Environment. This is towards its commitment to ensure that 

the costs of its activities do not fall disproportionately on its clients, the environment is not 

degraded in the process, and that renewable natural resources are managed sustainably.
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To emphasize on the same, during financial year 2015-16, the Company formulated and adopted a 

specific policy on “Environmental and Social Sustainability“, wherein the Company adopted an 

EXCLUSION LIST and an INCLUSION LIST for activities ensuring the basic tenets of responsible 

finance, including emphasis on conservation of energy.

Though the Company did not make any capital investment on energy conservation equipment, it 

ensured turning off, putting in standby mode or unplugging all electronic equipment and lights 

when not in use, and fully utilizing power-saving settings when in use, across all its premises.

Basically, energy consumed by the Company in the financial year 2015-16 was only in the form of 

electricity consumption in the course of operating administrative offices. Hence, the Company do 

not require to make any particular step for conservation of energy and its disclosure in this report 

under Section 134 of the Companies Act 2013.

Technology absorption:

During the initial phase, the Company had switched to Bankers Realm.Net (BR.Net), a modern 

technology solution designed especially for MFI operations. This software provides loan modules 

integrated with financial accounting and a strong built-in MIS. Moreover, it also helps the Company 

in providing credit details of clients to Credit Bureaus in a timely and efficient manner.

During the Current FY, the usage of mobile technology has been extended to the customer 

boarding and loan sanctioning process. This will help to improve the information flow and make all 

field, and branch level data entries on a real time basis. This will ensure real time monitoring by 

supervisor and better control on information for management.

The Company did not import any technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from 

the beginning of the financial year).

Hence, the Company reports 'NIL' under the following:

a) The details of technology imported;

b) The year of import;

c) Whether the technology been fully absorbed;

d) If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons thereof; 

Further, the Company does not carry any research work, hence there is no expenditure incurred on 

Research and Development.

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:

During the financial year 2015-16 the Company has no foreign exchange earnings and no foreign 

exchange outflow. 
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Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

The Board of Directors of the Company has, after taking into account the recommendations of the 

CSR Committee, approved the CSR Policy for the Company. 

The members of the Committee are as follows:

1. Mr. Tantra Narayan Thakur, Independent Director

2. Mr. Trilok Nath Shukla, Whole time Director

3. Ms. Shruti Agarwalla, Executive Member

With the objective of interventions 

through various services, a separate 

entity in the name of Samutkarsh 

Welfare Service (SWS) was incorporated 

as a not for profit organization, The 

Company provides 2% of its PBT every 

year as part of its Corporate Social 

Responsibility initiative to Samutkarsh 

Welfare Service, for undertaking credit 

plus activities. The projects undertaken 

for credit plus activities are:

i. Financial Awareness

ii. Vocational Training

iii. Health Initiatives

The Company has a separate Credit plus Committee to monitor and guide CSR related 

interventions on this which meets once in every month. 

Changes in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

During the year under review, there was no change in the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 

of the Company.

Declaration by Independent Director 

The Company has obtained suitable declarations from all its Independent Directors that they meet 

the criteria of independence as provided in sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 

2013.

Utkarsh celebrating special moments 

with especially abled children
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Annual Evaluation 

The Company reports that the Board annually evaluates its own performance and that of its 

Committees and individual Directors through formal discussions and marking the same through 

Action Taken Reports / minutes of previous meetings.

Number of meetings of the Board of Directors

A total of seven (7) Board Meetings were held during the financial year 2015-16. The particulars of 

meetings are summarized as below:

 Sl. No. Date Quorum No. of members present

 1.        May 20, 2015 5 7

 2.               May 21, 2015 5 9

 3.               July 28, 2015 5 5

 4.               August 24, 2015 5 6

 5.               November 06, 2015 5 8

 6.               January18,2016 5 8

 7.               March 04, 2016 5 7

Audit Committee

The composition of the Audit Committee of the Company is as follows:

1. Ms. Ramni Nirula, Independent Director   

2. Mr. Tantra Narayan Thakur, Independent Director

3. Mr. Vishal Mehta, Nominee Director

A total of three Audit Committee Meetings were held during the financial year 2015-16.  

The scope and terms of reference of Audit Committee are as per provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013. The Head  Internal Audit of the Company, independently reports to the Audit Committee. 

The Audit Committee reviews the accounts of the Company and presents its recommendation to 

the Board of Directors. The Board acts as per recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Details of establishment of Vigil mechanism for Directors and employees 

The Company, as a part of prudent practice, established Vigilance and Security department as 

essential pillars in developing and executing a comprehensive strategy to deal with instances of 

fraud and mismanagement, if any, and for a holistic and smooth operations of the Company. 

The department is fully functional to take overview of the related matter. 

Nomination Committee, Corporate Governance Committee and Compensation Committee

Nomination Committee and Corporate Governance Committee were setup as per the RBI circular 

no. RBI/2011-12/28DNBS (PD)CCNo.234/03.10.001/2011-12 dated July 1, 2011 which says that 
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NBFC-ND-SI may form a Nomination 

Committee to ensure 'fit and proper' 

status of proposed/existing Directors.

The roles & responsibility of Nomination 

Committee are as under: 

i. To ensure 'fit and proper' status of 

proposed/existing Directors as per the 

RBI guidelines.

ii. To regularly review the structure, size and composition of the Board  (including skills, 

knowledge and experience) taking into account the current requirements and future 

development of the Company, and make recommendations to the Board with regard to any 

adjustments that are deemed necessary;

iii. To identify, nominate and recommend for the approval of the Board, candidates to fill board 

vacancies as and when they arise; 

iv. To seek advice from external advisers and/or use open advertising, if  appropriate, in relation 

to seeking and selecting candidates for any appointments, having regard to the requirement to 

give an explanation in  the annual report if neither external consultants nor open advertising 

have been used;

v. To ensure that on appointment, all non-executive directors receive formal written terms of 

appointment;

vi. To make recommendations regarding the membership of the Audit Committee in consultation 

with the Chairman of the Audit Committee; 

vii. To investigate and make recommendations to the Board concerning any matters relating to the 

continuation in office as a Director of any Director at any time;

viii. To make recommendations to the Board regarding the appointment of any Director to 

executive or other office (except for the positions of Chairman and Chief Executive, which shall 

be matters for the Board);

ix. To review and, where necessary, update these terms of reference (subject to the approval of 

the Board) and make them publicly available.

The members of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

1.   Ms. Ramni Nirula, Independent Director  

2.   Ms. Shubhalakshmi A Panse, Independent Director

3.   Mr. Govind Singh, Managing Director  & CEO

The role of Corporate Governance Committee is to review and recommend the Board the 

composition, size and functioning of the Board.

Board Member interacting with employees
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The members of the Corporate Governance Committee

1.   Ms. Ramni Nirula, Independent Director  

2.   Ms. Shubhalakshmi A Panse, Independent Director

3.   Mr. Govind Singh, Managing Director & CEO

The role of Compensation Committee is to frame suitable policies & systems and recommend the 

remuneration payable to the Managing and Whole-time Directors of the Company and annual 

revision thereof. In addition, the Committee also decides and guides on the overall compensation 

policy of the Company.

The members of the Compensation Committee are as follows:

1.   Mr. Knut A. Frigaard, Nominee Director

2.   Mr. Nagarajan Srinivasan, Nominee Director

3.   Ms. Ramni Nirula, Independent Director 

4.   Mr. Tantra Narayan Thakur, Independent Director 

Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under Section 186

The Company has not given any loans, guarantees or made any investment which requires 

disclosure under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties

During the year under review, the Company has not entered into any contracts or arrangements 

with related parties. Hence, no disclosure is required to be given. 

Managerial Remuneration 

During the year under review, your Company has not paid remuneration to any employee in 

excess of limit mentioned under Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. Hence, no disclosure is required to be given.

Secretarial Audit Report  

As a matter of good corporate practice, your Company has started the practice of having 

Secretarial Audit of the Company by Independent Company Secretary. Accordingly, during the 

financial year 2015-16, M/s. Anubhav Srivastava & Associate, who was appointed as Secretarial 

Auditor, had conducted Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2014-15. 

Further, Your Company has appointed M/s. S. Krishna & Associates to conduct Secretarial Audit of 

the Company for the financial year 2015-16 and thereafter. 

Risk Management Policy

The Company has well documented Risk Management Policy in place covering all aspects of 

General Risk Management, Operational Risk Management, Credit Risk Management and Liquidity 

Risk Management. 
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A separate Risk Department is in place since early days of the Company. This department 

facilitates the appropriate risk management in the Company through its established risk 

governance structure comprising of Management level risk committee and board level risk 

management committee and ensures suitable development and implementation of a risk 

management policy for the Company including identification therein of elements of risk, if any, 

which in the opinion of the Board may threaten the existence of the company.

Directors' Responsibility Statement

In terms of provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors confirm that:

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been 

followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of 

the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of 

the Company for that period;

c) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of the Company's Act 2013 for safeguarding the 

assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e) The Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that 

such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

f) The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2016

(All amounts in Indian rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated)

  Note  As at   As at

    31 March 2016  31 March 2015

 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

 Shareholders' funds

 Share capital 2.1   41,77,52,000   50,15,44,530 

 Reserves and surplus 2.2   1,50,26,31,658   1,11,54,51,559 

     1,92,03,83,658   1,61,69,96,089 

 Non-current liabilities 

 Long-term borrowings 2.3   8,32,57,86,620   4,21,25,48,269 

 Other long-term liabilities 2.4   8,25,26,837   98,65,170 

 Long-term provisions 2.5   6,03,58,619   1,67,06,171 

     8,46,86,72,076   4,23,91,19,610 

 Current liabilities

 Short-term borrowings 2.6   -     18,00,00,000 

 Other current liabilities 2.7   4,89,40,48,976   3,32,96,88,472 

 Short-term provisions 2.8   10,47,92,278   6,27,50,819 

     4,99,88,41,254   3,57,24,39,291 

 Total    15,38,78,96,988   9,42,85,54,990         

 ASSETS

 Non current assets

 Fixed assets 2.9

 (i) Tangible assets    6,32,92,574   3,13,77,995 

 (ii) Intangible assets    22,18,030   10,74,644 

 Deferred tax assets, net 2.26   -     3,71,266 

 Gross loan portfolio  4,07,23,95,376  1,47,68,79,884 

 Less: Managed portfolio   55,83,87,371   16,02,30,933 

 Loan portfolio 2.10  3,51,40,08,005   1,31,66,48,951 

 Long-term loans & advances 2.11   1,19,813   1,27,302 

 Other non-current assets 2.12    61,50,27,324   57,31,94,729  

    4,19,46,65,746   1,92,27,94,887 

 Current assets 

 Current investments 2.13   11,26,28,876   10,13,639 

 Trade receivables 2.14   2,44,35,975   4,09,77,722 

 Cash and bank balances 2.15   2,27,11,06,600   2,36,77,79,905 
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 Gross loan portfolio   10,25,24,35,439  5,80,40,29,967 

 Less: Managed  portfolio   1,75,32,97,573  88,64,05,834 

 Loan portfolio 2.10  8,49,91,37,866   4,91,76,24,133 

 Short-term loans & advances 2.16   11,70,87,630   5,30,46,169 

 Other current assets 2.17   16,88,34,295   12,53,18,535 

     11,19,32,31,242   7,50,57,60,103 

 Total    15,38,78,96,988   9,42,85,54,990 

 Significant accounting policies 1

 Notes to financial statements 2 

 The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.

 As per our report of even date attached

 for B S R & Associates LLP   for Utkarsh Micro Finance Private Limited 

 Chartered Accountants  C IN: U65191UP1990PTC045609

 ICAI Firm Registration No: 116231W/W-100024

 H Selva Thiraviam Govind Singh Trilok Nath Shukla

 Partner Managing Director & CEO Whole Time director

 Membership No. 200120 DIN: 02470880 DIN: 00473897

  

  Abhisheka Kumar Neeraj Kumar Tiwari

  Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

 Place: Hyderabad Place: New Delhi

 Date: 17 May 2016 Date: 17 May 2016   
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2016 

(All amounts in Indian rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated) 

  Note For the year ended For the year ended 

   31 March 2016 31 March 2015

 Revenue from operations 2.18 2,38,62,38,737  1,25,48,74,354 

 Other income 2.18 15,16,03,266 9.47,44,425 

 Total revenue   2,53,78,42,003  1,34,96,18,779 

 Expenses  

 Operating expenses 2.20 23,80,93,358 12,96,69,218

 Employee benefits expense 2.21 51,19,88,481  27,95,84,336

 Finance costs 2.22 1,11,63,89,616  65,07,29,370

 Depreciation and amortisation expense 2.9 2,17,86,328  77,58,812

 Other expenses 2.23 3,84,35,942  1,70,78,536

 Total expense  1,92,66,93,725  1,08,48,20,272 

 Profit before tax   61,11,48,278  26,47,98,507 

 Tax expenses:     

 - Current tax   24,26,82,544  10,47,75,598

  - Tax for earlier years  42,658 -   

 Deferred tax expense/(benefit) 2.26  3,71,266  (1,81,060)

 Profit after tax   36,80,51,810  16,02,03,969 

 Earnings per equity share 2.28  

 [Nominal value per share `10

 (previous year: `10)]   

 Basic   8.81 5.26

 Diluted  7.43 4.77

 Significant accounting policies 1

 Notes to financial statements 2 

 The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.

 As per our report of even date attached

 for B S R & Associates LLP   for Utkarsh Micro Finance Private Limited 

 Chartered Accountants  C IN: U65191UP1990PTC045609

 ICAI Firm Registration No: 116231W/W-100024

 H Selva Thiraviam Govind Singh Trilok Nath Shukla

 Partner Managing Director & CEO Whole Time director

 Membership No. 200120 DIN: 02470880 DIN: 00473897

  

  Abhisheka Kumar Neeraj Kumar Tiwari

  Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

 Place: Hyderabad Place: New Delhi

 Date: 17 May 2016 Date: 17 May 2016   
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2016

(All amounts in Indian rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated)

  For the year ended For the year ended

  31 March 2016 31 March 2015

 I. Cash flow from operating activities

 Profit before tax 61,11,48,278  26,47,98,507

 Adjustments :

 Depreciation and amortisation expense  2,17,86,328  77,58,812 

 Provisions on loan portfolio  8,98,18,502  4,11,40,029 

 Employee compensation expenses 1,74,93,691  13,52,250

 Discount on issue of debentures 13,09,051  6,97,445

  Loss on sale of fixed assets 25,496  43,114

 Dividend income from current investment (46,51,985) (20,76,650)

 Operating cash flow before working capital changes   73,69,29,361  31,37,13,507 

 (Increase)/decrease in loan portfolio (5,77,88,72,787) (3,38,83,23,756)

 (Increase)/decrease in loans and advances (6,22,23,991) (4,60,36,150)

 (Increase)/decrease in other assets (3,87,38,059) (34,20,983)

 (Increase)/decrease in trade receivables 1,65,41,747  (3,07,51,752)

 (Increase)/decrease in other current liabilities

 and provisions 1,63,81,66,779  1,29,43,63,462

 Cash used by operations (3,48,81,96,950) (1,86,04,55,672)

 Income taxes paid, net (24,27,25,202) (10,35,75,711)

 Net cash used by operating activities (A) (3,73,09,22,152) (1,96,40,31,383)

 II. Cash flow from investing activities

 Purchase of fixed assets (5,51,89,514) (2,55,45,103)

 Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 3,19,725  4,27,950

 Purchase of mutual fund units (5,58,08,51,985) (1,98,10,61,046)

 Redemption of mutual fund units 5,46,92,36,748  1,98,05,00,000

 Dividend received 46,51,985  20,76,650

 Investment in long term deposits with maturity of

 more than three months 5,45,89,507  (48,95,61,594)

 Net cash used by investing activities (B) (10,72,43,534) (51,31,63,143)
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  For the year ended For the year ended

  31 March 2016 31 March 2015

 III. Cash flow from financing activities 

 Proceeds from issuance of share capital

 (including share premium), net 97,42,204  73,90,39,942

 Redemption of preference shares (9,00,00,000)  -

 Dividend payment on preference shares

 (including taxes thereon) (89,79,321) 

 Proceeds from long term borrowings

 (including debentures), net 4,11,32,38,351 2,37,10,41,670

 Proceeds from/(repayment of) short term

 borrowings, net (18,00,00,000) 17,96,82,639

 Net cash provided by financing activities (C) 3,84,40,01,234  3,28,97,64,251

 Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  58,35,548  81,25,69,725 

 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  1,86,96,00,301  1,05,70,30,576 

 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  1,87,54,35,849  1,86,96,00,301 

 Note:

 1. Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (Note: 2.15)

  31 March 2016 31 March 2015

 Cash in hand  90,63,766  55,99,043 

 Balances with banks

 - in current accounts  34,56,69,584  34,12,42,451 

 - in deposit accounts  1,52,07,02,499  1,52,27,58,807  

   1,87,54,35,849  1,86,96,00,301 

 As per our report of even date attached

 for B S R & Associates LLP   for Utkarsh Micro Finance Private Limited 

 Chartered Accountants  C IN: U65191UP1990PTC045609

 ICAI Firm Registration No: 116231W/W-100024

 H Selva Thiraviam Govind Singh Trilok Nath Shukla

 Partner Managing Director & CEO Whole Time director

 Membership No. 200120 DIN: 02470880 DIN: 00473897

    Abhisheka Kumar Neeraj Kumar Tiwari

  Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

 Place: Hyderabad Place: New Delhi

 Date: 17 May 2016 Date: 17 May 2016   
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Company Overview

Utkarsh Micro Finance Private 

Limited (formerly Shre Pathrakali 

Finance Company Private Limited) 

(“Utkarsh” or “the Company”) was 

originally incorporated as a Public 

Limited Company on May 15, 1990 

under the Companies Act, 1956. 

T h e  C o m p a n y  w a s  i n i t i a l l y  

registered effective 15 June 1999 as 

a deposit taking Non Banking 

Financial Company under section 

45-IA of the RBI Act, 1934. The 

Company repaid all its outstanding 

public deposits (including interest accrued and due) on 22 August 2009. 

Subsequently, the Company, with its main objective as carrying of micro lending business, 

converted into a Private Limited Company on 09 December 2009 and obtained a certificate of 

registration from Reserve Bank of India to commence/ carry on the business of Non Banking 

Financial institution without accepting public deposits on 19 March 2010. The Company has 

received NBFC MFI certificate on 21 January 2014 from Reserve Bank of India. The Company listed 

its Non-Convertible Debentures ('NCDs') on Bombay Stock Exchange, India.

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of micro finance, following group lending 

methodology and providing small value unsecured group loans to lower income group of below 

poverty line (BPL) in urban and rural areas. The tenure of these loans is generally spread over a 

period of upto 2 years.

The Company had received 'in-principle' approval to establish a Small Finance Bank from Reserve 

Bank of India vide letter dated 7 October 2015. The validity of the in-principal approval is eighteen 

months from the date of the letter and is subject to fulfillment of certain conditions. The Company 

is in the process of establishing small finance bank and fulfilling the conditions within the 

stipulated timelines. The Management has incorporated a new legal entity namely Utkarsh Small 

Finance Bank Limited on 30 April 2016, which would be a subsidiary of the Company for 

establishing a small finance bank. Accordingly, the Management intends to transfer the business of 

Utkarsh Micro Finance Private Limited to Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015 

(All amounts in Indian rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated)

CFO and COO receiving MSME Banking Excellence 

Award for Utkarsh from CIMSME
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1. Significant accounting policies

a. Basis of preparation of financial statements

 The financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost 

convention on the accrual basis of accounting and comply with the Accounting Standards 

specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') read with Rule 7 of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, other accounting principles generally accepted (GAAP) in 

India and the Reserve Bank of India ('RBI') guidelines to the extent applicable to a Non-Deposit 

taking Non-Banking Finance Company Systemically Important ('NBFC-ND-SI') and Non-Banking 

Financial Company - Micro Finance Institution ('NBFC-MFI'). The financial statements are 

presented in Indian Rupees rounded off to the nearest rupee.

b. Use of estimates

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting 

Principles requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the 

application of accounting principles, reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and 

expenses and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements. 

Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are 

reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised 

prospectively in current and future periods.

c. Current  non-current classification

 All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current.

 Assets

 An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

 i. it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company's 

normal operating cycle;

 ii. it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

 iii. it is expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or 

 iv. it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a 

liability for atleast 12 months after the reporting date.

 Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are 

classified as non-current.

 Liabilities

 A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

 i. it is expected to be settled in the Company's normal operating cycle;

 ii. it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

 iii. it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or 
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 iv. the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for 

atleast 12 months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the 

counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its 

classification.

 Current liabilities include the current portion of non-current financial liabilities.  All other 

liabilities are classified as non-current.

 Operating cycle

 Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their 

realisation in cash or cash equivalents. Based on the nature of operations and their realisation 

in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve 

months.

d. Revenue Recognition

 i. Interest income on loan portfolio is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss on 

accrual basis taking into account the amount outstanding and rate applicable except in the 

case of non-performing assets (NPAs) where it is recognized, upon realization, as per the 

prudential norms of RBI.

 ii. Gain on securitisation of assets is recognised on the difference between the book value of 

the securitised assets and consideration received on the assets derecognised from books. 

The same is amortised over the life of the securitised loan portfolio and losses, if any, are 

recognised immediately in accordance with the guidelines laid down by RBI on 

securitization.

 iii. Income from business correspondent activity is recognised on accrual basis as per the 

terms of arrangement entered into with the client bank. Revenue from Business 

Correspondent activities to the extent of services rendered but yet to be billed are treated 

as Unbilled revenue and are disclosed under other current assets.

 iv. Loan processing fees collected from the borrowers is recognised over the tenure of the 

loan.

 v. Interest on term deposits has been accrued on time proportion basis, using the underlying 

interest rate.

 vi. Income from non refundable revenue grant is recognised on receipt basis on fulfillment of 

grant obligation. 

 vii. Dividend income is accounted when the right to receive the dividend is established.

e. Classification of loan portfolio and provisioning policy

 All loan exposures are classified as per RBI guidelines, into performing and non-performing 

assets (“NPAs”). Further, NPAs are classified into sub-standard, doubtful and loss assets in 

accordance with the extant Master Circular No. DNBR (PD) CC.No.047/03.10.119/2015-16 dated 
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1 July 2015 issued by RBI and Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial (Non-Deposit 

Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2015 issued by 

RBI to the extent applicable. 

 The provisioning rates and classification criteria for NPAs, which are not lower than the rates 

prescribed in RBI guidelines, are as given below:

 Asset Classification Overdue Days Provisioning

 Standard – I 0 days 1%

 Standard –II 1 to 60 days 10%

 Standard – III 61 to 90 days 20%

 Sub standard  91 to180 days  50%

 Doubtful 181 – 365 days 100%

 Loss >365 days Write off

 In addition to the provisions as mentioned above the Company maintains an additional 2% 

provision on standard assets with respect to Micro Enterprise Loans and Affordable Housing 

Loans based on the estimated risk.

f. Fixed assets 

 Tangible assets

 Tangible fixed assets are carried at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation. The cost 

of tangible fixed assets comprises the purchase price, taxes, duties, freight (net of rebates and 

discounts) and any other directly attributable costs of bringing the assets to their working 

condition for their intended use. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition of those 

tangible fixed assets which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their 

intended use are capitalised.

 Subsequent expenditures related to an item of tangible fixed asset are added to its book value 

only if they increase the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed 

standard of performance.

 Tangible fixed assets under construction and tangible fixed assets acquired but not ready for 

their intended use are disclosed as capital work-in-progress.

 The Company provides depreciation under straight line method on tangible fixed assets, other 

than leasehold improvements and assets costing less than `5,000, based on the useful life 

specified in schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, as in the opinion of the Management, the 

same reflects the estimated useful life. Depreciation is calculated on pro-rata basis from the 

date on which the assets are ready for use or till the date the assets are sold or disposed off.

 Leasehold improvements are amortised on straight line basis over the primary period of the 

lease or the estimated useful life of the assets, whichever is lower.
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 With respect to assets costing less than `5,000 based on internal assessment and materiality, 

the management has estimated that the same shall be depreciated in the year of purchase.

 Losses arising from retirement or gains or losses arising from disposal of fixed assets which 

are carried at cost are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

 Intangible assets

 Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are measured initially at cost. After initial 

recognition, an intangible asset is carried at its cost less any accumulated amortisation and any 

accumulated impairment loss.  Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases 

the future economic benefits from the specific asset to which it relates.

 Intangible assets are amortized in the Statement of Profit and Loss over their estimated useful 

lives from the date they are available for use based on the expected pattern of consumption of 

economic benefits of the asset. Intangible assets are amortised on straight line basis. 

Computer software are amortised on straight line basis over their estimated useful life of three 

years.

g. Grants

 Grants and subsidies from the Government are recognised when there is reasonable assurance 

that 

 (i)  the company will comply with the conditions attached to them and 

 (ii) the grant/ subsidy will be received.  

 Grants of the nature of promoter's contribution are credited to capital reserve and treated as a 

part of the shareholder's funds. 

 Where the grants are received as compensation for expenses or losses incurred, the grants are 

taken to the statement of profit and loss in the period to which it relates.

h. Investments

 Investments are classified as current investments, if the management does not intend to hold 

the investments for more than one year. Investments other than current investments are 

classified as long term investments. Current investments are carried at the lower of cost and 

fair value. The comparison of cost and fair value is done separately in respect of each category 

of investments. In case of investment in mutual funds, the net asset value of units declared by 

the mutual fund is considered as fair value. Long term investments are carried at cost less 

diminution in value, other than temporary, determined separately for each individual asset.

 Income or loss on sale of investments is determined on a first in first out basis. Any reduction 

in the carrying amount and any reversals of such reductions are charged or credited to 

Statement of Profit and Loss. 

i. Foreign currency transactions

 Foreign currency transactions are recorded using the exchange rates prevailing on the dates of 

the respective transactions. Exchange differences arising on foreign currency transactions 

settled during the year are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.



77

 Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at the balance sheet date, 

not covered by forward exchange contracts, are translated at year end rates. The resultant 

exchange differences are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Non-monetary assets 

are recorded at the rates prevailing on the date of the transaction.

j. Employee benefits

 Defined contribution plans

 The Company makes specified monthly contribution towards employee provident fund to 

Government administered provident fund scheme, which is a defined contribution scheme. 

The Company's contribution is recognised as an expense in the statement of Profit and loss 

during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

 Defined benefit plan

 The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible 

employees. Gratuity is covered under a scheme administered by Life Insurance Corporation of 

India (Group Gratuity scheme) and the contributions made by the company to the scheme are 

recognised in the Statement of Profit and loss. The liability recognised in the Balance Sheet in 

respect of defined benefit plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the 

balance sheet date less the fair value of plan assets. The calculation of the Company's 

obligation under the plan is performed annually by qualified independent actuary using the 

projected unit credit method.

 Actuarial gains and losses arising during the year are immediately recognised in the Statement 

of Profit and loss.

 Compensated absence

 Compensated absence, is a long-term employee benefit, and accrued based on an actuarial 

valuation done as per projected unit credit method at the balance sheet date, carried out by an 

independent actuary. Compensated absence is covered under a scheme administered by Life 

Insurance Corporation of India. 

 Actuarial gains and losses arising during the year are immediately recognised in the Statement 

of Profit and loss.

 Employee Stock Option Scheme

 The Company has formulated an Employees Stock Option Schemes to be administered 

through a Trust. The scheme provides that subject to continued employment with the 

company, employees of the Company are granted an option to acquire equity shares of the 

company that may be exercised within a specified period. The company follows the intrinsic 

value method for computing the compensation cost for all options granted which will be 

amortized over the vesting period. Measurement and disclosure of the employee share-based 

payment Schemes are done in accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for 

Employee Share-based Payments, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
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k. Income Tax

 Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax.

 Current tax 

 The current charge for income taxes is calculated in accordance with the relevant tax 

regulations applicable to the Company.

 Deferred tax

 Deferred tax charge or benefit reflects the tax effects of timing differences between accounting 

income and taxable income for the year. The deferred tax charge or benefit and the 

corresponding deferred tax liabilities or assets are recognised using the tax rates that have 

been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are 

recognised only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be realized in 

future; however, where there is unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward of losses, deferred 

tax assets are recognised only if there is a virtual certainty of realization of such assets. 

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and written-down or written-up to 

reflect the amount that is reasonably/virtually certain to be realized.

l. Earnings per share

 Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) is computed by dividing the net profit after tax for the year 

attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares 

outstanding during the year. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, net 

profit after tax for the year and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the 

year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity 

shares are deemed to have been converted as of the beginning of the year, unless they have 

been issued at a later date.

m. Provisions and contingent liabilities

 A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present obligation 

that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be 

required to settle the obligation.  Provisions are recognised at the best estimate of the 

expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date.  The provisions 

are measured on an undiscounted basis.

 A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present 

obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or a present 

obligation whose amount cannot be estimated reliably.  Contingent liabilities do not warrant 

provisions, but are disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is remote.

 A contract is considered as onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the 

Company from the contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations 

under the contract.  The provision for an onerous contract is measured at the lower of the 

expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the 
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contract.  Before a provision is established, the Company recognises any impairment loss on 

the assets associated with that contract.

n. Impairment of assets

 The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that any 

assets forming part of its cash generating units may be impaired.  If any such indication exists, 

the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the 

asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs to is 

less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The 

reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and 

Loss. If at the balance sheet date, there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment 

loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the 

reassessed recoverable amount subject to a maximum of depreciated historical cost.

o. Leases

 Leases that do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as 

operating leases and recorded as expense as and when the payments are made over the lease 

term. 

 Assets taken on lease where the Company acquires substantially the entire risks and rewards 

incidental to ownership are classified as finance leases. The amount recorded is the lesser of 

the present value of minimum lease rental and other incidental expenses during the lease term 

or the fair value of the assets taken on lease.

p. Cash flow statement

 Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net surplus before tax is adjusted 

for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or 

future cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or 

financing cash flows. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing and financing 

activities of the Company are segregated.Utkarsh Micro Finance Private Limited

q. Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and cash on deposit with banks/financial institutions. 

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a remaining maturity of three 

months or less and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash 

equivalents.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 (continued)

(All amounts in Indian rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated)

   As at As at

   31 March 2016 31 March 2015

 2.1 Share capital

  Authorised

  Equity shares 

  90,000,000 (Previous year: 52,000,000)

  Equity shares of `10 each (refer below note)  90,00,00,000  52,00,00,000 

  Preference Shares 

  Nil (Previous year: 9,000,000)

  Preference shares of `10 each -    9,00,00,000       

  Issued, subscribed and paid-up

  Equity shares

  42,717,511 (Previous year 42,227,953)

  Equity shares of `10 each, fully paid up 42,71,75,110  42,22,79,530 

  Less: Amount recoverable from Utkarsh ESOP Welfare Trust  94,23,110  1,07,35,000    

     41,77,52,000  41,15,44,530 

  Preference shares

  Nil (Previous year: 9,000,000) 12% cumulative

  non-convertible compulsorily redeemable preference

  shares ('CNCRPS') (carrying dividend rate of 12%

  per annum on XIRR basis) of `10 each, fully paid up -    9,00,00,000 

    41,77,52,000  50,15,44,530

  Note: Members of the Company has passed resolution in the Extraordinary general meeting 

held on 30 March 2016 to increase the authorised share capitial to `900,000,000 including the 

reclassification of authorised preference share capital to equity share capital. The requisite form 

has been filed with Ministry of Company Affairs subsequent to the balance sheet date. 

  (a) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding is set out below:

  Equity shares

  Particulars 31 March 2016 31 March 2015

   Number of   Amount Number of   Amount   

   shares  shares

  Outstanding as at the beginning of

  the year 4,22,27,953   42,22,79,530  2,58,63,703   25,86,37,030 

  Issued during the year  4,89,558   48,95,580  1,63,64,250   16,36,42,500 

  Outstanding at the end of the year 4,27,17,511   42,71,75,110  4,22,27,953   42,22,79,530 
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  12% cumulative non-convertible compulsorily redeemable preference shares ('CNCRPS')

  Particulars 31 March 2016 31 March 2015

   Number of   Amount Number of   Amount   

   shares  shares

  Outstanding as at the beginning of the

  year as at the beginning of the year 9,000,000 90,000,000 - - 

  Issued during the year - - 9,000,000 90,000,000

  Redeemed during the year 9,000,000 90,000,000 - -

  Shares outstanding as at the

  end of the year - - 9,000,000 90,000,000 

  (b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

  (i) Equity shares 

  The Company has single class equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per equity share. 

Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the Company's 

residual assets. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time 

subject to payment of dividend to preference shareholders.  In the event of liquidation of the 

Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the 

Company, remaining after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to the number of 

equity shares held. 

  (ii) 12% cumulative non-convertible compulsorily redeemable preference shares ('CNCRPS')

  The Company had issued 9,000,000 12% cumulative non-convertible compulsorily redeemable 

preference shares of Rs. 10 each to UNIFI AFI Business at par on 31 October 2014. These 

preference shares were reedeemed at par on 15 July 2015 as per share subscription agreement 

dated 30 October 2014. Accordingly, the Company has transferred the sum equal to nominal 

amount of the preference shares to capital redemption reserve.      

  (c) Details of shareholder holding more than 5% shares is set below:

  Equity shares As at 31 March 2016 As at 31 March 2015

  Name of the shareholder Number of   % of  Number of   % of

   shares Holding shares Holding

  Govind Singh  31,50,808  7.38% 28,61,250  6.78%

  Aavishkaar Goodwell India Microfinance

  Development Company II Limited  65,32,225  15.29% 65,32,225  15.47%

  International Finance Corporation                  60,95,574  14.27% 60,95,574  14.43%

  NMI Frontier Fund KS, Norway                   73,82,228  17.28% 73,82,228  17.48%

  Sarva Capital II LLC

  (formerly LOK Capital II LLC)  54,75,536  12.82% 52,75,536  12.49%

  CDC Group PLC  85,71,750  20.07% 85,71,750  20.30%

    3,72,08,121  87.10% 3,67,18,563  86.95%
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  12% cumulative non-convertible compulsorily redeemable preference shares ('CNCRPS')

  Name of the shareholder Number of   % of  Number of   % of

   shares Holding shares Holding

  UNIFI AFI Business  - - 9,000,000  100.00%

   - - 9,000,000  100.00%

  (d) Shares reserved for issue under options - Refer note 2.29 for details of shares to be issued  

under employee stock option plan.

  (e) Terms of convertible debentures - Refer note 2.3

   As at As at

  31 March 2016 31March 20152.2 Reserves and surplus

  Capital redemption reserve

  Balance as at the beginning of the year -

  Add: Transfer from surplus in Statement of

  Profit and Loss [refer note 2.1 b(ii)] 9,00,00,000   -

  Balance as at the end of the year (A) 9,00,00,000   -

  Securities premium account

  Balance as at the beginning of the year 83,54,01,381  34,91,91,747

  Add: On issue of shares during the year 1,73,84,204  49,09,27,500

  Add: Transfer from Employees stock option outstanding 4,79,611  8,12,192

  Less: Amount utilised towards share issue expenses -    55,30,058

   85,32,65,196  83,54,01,381

  Less: Amount recoverable from Utkarsh ESOP Welfare Trust 94,42,228  99,40,319

  Balance as at the end of the year (B) 84,38,22,968  82,54,61,062 

  Employees stock options outstanding

  Balance as at the beginning of the year 5,40,058   -

  Add: Compensation for options granted 49,56,111  13,52,250

  Less: Trasferred to securities premium account

  on exercise of stock options 4,79,611  8,12,192

  Balance as at the end of the year (C) 50,16,558  5,40,058

  Statutory reserve

  (created under Section 45-1C of RBI Act, 1934) 

  Balance as at the beginning of the year 6,09,17,040  2,88,76,246

  Add: Transferred from surplus 7,36,10,362  3,20,40,794

  Balance as at the end of the year (D) 13,45,27,402  6,09,17,040 

  Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss

  Balance as at the beginning of the year 22,85,33,399  10,60,47,748

  Add: Profit for the year 36,80,51,810  16,02,03,969
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   As at As at

  31 March 2016 31March 2015     2.2 Reserves and surplus

  Less: Amount transferred to statutory reserve

  (created under Section 45-1C of RBI Act, 1934) 7,36,10,362  3,20,40,794

  Less: Amount transferred to capital redemption

  reserve [refer note 2.1 b(ii)] 9,00,00,000   -

  Less : Amount of depreciation as per transition

  provision of Companies Act, 2013 (refer note 2.9 and 2.27) -    4,08,320

  Less: Dividend on 12% cumulative non-convertible

  compulsorily redeemable preference shares 30,82,578  43,91,219

  Less: Tax on preference dividend 6,27,539  8,77,985

  Balance as at the end of the year (E) 42,92,64,730  22,85,33,399

  Total (A+B+C+D+E) 1,50,26,31,658  1,11,54,51,559 

 2.3 Long-term borrowings*

  Secured

  Debentures

  3,248 (Previous year: 1,498) Redeemable transferable

  non convertible debentures of `1,000,000 each 3,07,40,00,000  1,49,80,00,000

  7,711 (Previous year: Nil) Redeemable transferable

  non convertible debentures of `50,000 each 38,55,50,000   -

    3,45,95,50,000  1,49,80,00,000     

  Term Loans

  From banks 1,27,67,14,733  1,54,35,06,381 

  From financial institution 1,77,89,37,332  15,20,66,680 

  From others 1,10,51,54,555  31,35,45,208 

    4,16,08,06,620  2,00,91,18,269 

  Unsecured

  Debentures

  60,543,000 (previous year: 60,543,000)

  0.01% non-redeemable, mandatorily and

  fully convertible debentures ^ 60,54,30,000  60,54,30,000 

  Term loan from financial institution 10,00,00,000  10,00,00,000 

    8,32,57,86,620  4,21,25,48,269 

  * Refer note 2.38 for terms of borrowings

  ^ The Company has issued 60,543,000 0.01% non-redeemable, mandatorily and fully 
convertible debentures of `10 each at par on 12 December 2014. Upto maximum of 9 
debentures are convertible into one equity share as per the terms of Subscription Agreement 
dated 28 November 2014. These debentures are mandatorily convertible after the expiry of 20 
years from 28 November 2014. However, debenture holders have the right to excericse the 
conversion option by issuing a written notice to the Company before the expiry of 20 years.
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 2.4 Other long-term liabilities

  Unamortised income on securitised portfolio  -    92,253 

  Unamortised processing fees  8,25,26,837  97,72,917 

    8,25,26,837  98,65,170 

 2.5 Long-term provisions

Contingent provision against standard assets

(refer note 2.25) 4,83,67,224  1,66,17,718

Provision on non performing assets (refer note 2.25) 1,19,91,395  88,453

 6,03,58,619  1,67,06,171 

 2.6 Short-term borrowings*

Secured

Cash credit from others -    18,00,00,000

 -    18,00,00,000 

  * Refer note 2.39 for terms of borrowings

 2.7 Other current liabilities

Current maturities of long-term debt (refer note 2.38)

Secured     

334 (Previous year: 240) Redeemable transferable

non convertible debentures of `1,000,000 each 33,40,00,000  24,00,00,000

From banks 2,70,70,89,501  2,47,84,95,284

From financial institutions 87,31,29,347  11,75,99,992

From others 53,52,87,622  18,22,00,880

 4,44,95,06,470  3,01,82,96,156 

  Unsecured

Loan from financial institution  -    5,00,00,000

 4,44,95,06,470  3,06,82,96,156

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 15,22,19,110  6,10,36,065

Payable on securitised portfolio 12,28,54,331  9,93,61,458

Unamortised processing fee  3,22,49,239  4,61,84,855

Unamortised income on securitised portfolio 46,022  21,78,109

Statutory liabilities 1,85,34,624  95,45,743  

Employee benefits payable 4,75,28,422  1,47,45,827  

Security deposit from staff 1,80,27,385  1,15,45,850  

Client insurance payable 4,71,57,379  91,72,109  

Expenses payable  59,15,993  76,22,300  

Advance received from Utkarsh ESOP Trust  10,001  -   

 4,89,40,48,976  3,32,96,88,472 
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 2.8 Short-term provisions

Privision for income tax (net of advance tax)  -    11,95,336 

Provision for employee benefits     

- Gratuity (refer note 2.30) 25,87,358   -

- Compensated absences 39,02,234  11,01,483

Contingent provision against standard assets (refer note 2.25) 9,60,24,794  5,39,24,095

Provision on non performing assets (refer note 2.25) 22,77,892  12,60,701

Provision for preference dividend   -    43,91,219

Tax on preference dividend  -    8,77,985    

 10,47,92,278  6,27,50,819 
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           2.10 Loan portfolio 

At the beginning of the year 7,28,09,09,851  3,55,64,98,447

Add: Disbursed during the year 17,12,60,43,500  8,98,90,82,500    

 24,40,69,53,351  12,54,55,80,947     

Less: Recovered during the year 10,07,87,83,360  5,26,44,48,477

Written off during the year 33,39,176  2,22,619

Gross loan portfolio outstanding at the end of year 14,32,48,30,815  7,28,09,09,851

Less: Securitised portfolio outstanding 

at the end of the year 2,31,16,84,944  1,04,66,36,767 

Total loan portfolio outstanding at the end of the year

(Refer note 1 and 2 below) 12,01,31,45,871 6,23,42,73,084

Less: Non current portion of the loan portfolio 3,51,40,08,005  1,31,66,48,951

Current portion of the loan portfolio 8,49,91,37,866  4,91,76,24,133

  Of the above total loan portfolio:    

Loan portfolio (considered good) 11,99,30,67,241  6,23,22,00,986

Loan portfolio (considered doubtful) 2,00,78,630  20,72,098    

 12,01,31,45,871 6,23,42,73,084 

  Note:

  1. Total loan portfolio outstanding includes `141,674,749 (previous year: `6,653,451) towards 

minimum retention requirement. 

  2. Total loan portfolio outstanding is secured to the extent of `80,225,872 (previous year: 

`188,188,574).    

 2.11 Long-term loans and advances

(Unsecured, considered good)

Prepaid expenses  1,19,813  1,27,302

  1,19,813  1,27,302 

 2.12 Other non-current assets

(unsecured, considered good)    

Long term bank deposits with maturity of 

more than 12 months* 55,46,17,205  50,66,97,858

Security deposits towards borrowings** -    2,30,00,000

Interest accrued on fixed deposits 2,01,27,602  1,50,55,291

Discount on issue of debentures 6,08,029  19,13,504

Unamortised processing fee on borrowings 3,68,11,943  2,45,54,281

Rent deposit 28,62,545  19,73,795    

  61,50,27,324  57,31,94,729 

  *Includes deposits of `551,815,630 (previous year: `398,515,979) maintained as cash collateral 

against term loans availed and securitised portfolio. 

  **Represents deposits maintained as cash collateral against term loans availed.
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 2.13 Current investments

(Non trade, quoted, valued at cost or fair market value whichever is lower)    

Investment in mutual fund units     

14,121.30 (previous year: 205.60) units of 

Reliance Mutual Fund, fully paid-up" 2,15,87,794  3,14,316 

210.47 (previous year: 67.69) units of

Reliance Mutual Fund, fully paid-up"  2,11,355  67,875 

17,202.70 (previous year: 272.74) units of

Kotak Mutual Fund, fully paid-up" 2,10,35,634  3,33,520 

744,062.38 (previous year: Nil) units of

Kotak Mutual Fund, fully paid-up" 75,00,000   - 

210,730.69 (previous year: 2,789.25) units of 

Birla Sunlife Mutual Fund, fully paid-up 2,11,14,162  2,79,468 

"644.58 (previous year: 18.45) units of 

DSP Blackrock Mutual Fund, fully paid-up" 6,45,098  18,460

"4.28 (previous year: Nil) units of 

DSP Blackrock Mutual Fund, fully paid-up  4,299   -

20,452.86 (previous year: Nil) units of 

SBI Mutual Fund, fully paid-up 2,05,19,167   - 

19,622.45 (previous year: Nil) units of 

HDFC Mutual Fund, fully paid-up 2,00,11,367   -   

   11,26,28,876  10,13,639     

Aggregate market value 11,26,28,876  10,13,639 

 2.14 Trade receivables

(Unsecured, considered good)    

Receivables outstanding for a period exceeding 

six months from the date they became due for payment -     -   

Others debts 2,44,35,975  4,09,77,722      

  2,44,35,975  4,09,77,722 

 2.15 Cash and bank balances

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand  90,63,766  55,99,043 

Balances with  banks

- in current accounts  34,56,69,584  34,12,42,451 

- in deposit accounts (with less than three months maturity)*  1,52,07,02,499  1,52,27,58,807 

  1,87,54,35,849  1,86,96,00,301 

Other bank balances

  Long term deposits with maturity more than 3 months

but less than 12 months**  39,56,70,751  49,81,79,604 

  2,27,11,06,600  2,36,77,79,905 

  *Includes deposits of `119,418,754 (previous year: `71,358,796) maintained as cash collateral 

against term loans availed.

  **Includes deposits of `370,009,535 (previous year: `202,652,153) maintained as cash 

collateral against term loans availed and securitised portfolio.    
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     Details of bank balances and deposits

Bank balances available on demand/deposits with

maturity of 3 months or less included under 

‘Cash and cash equivalents’ 1,52,07,02,499  1,52,27,58,807

Bank deposits due to mature within 12 months of the

reporting date included under ‘Other bank balances’ 39,56,70,751  49,81,79,604

Bank deposits due to mature after 12 months of the

reporting date included under ‘Other non-current assets’

(refer note 2.12) 55,46,17,205  50,66,97,858    

 2,47,09,90,455  2,52,76,36,269 

 2.16 Short-term loans and advances

(Unsecured, considered good)    

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for 

value to be received 8,67,18,940  3,73,71,023

Advance to Utkarsh ESOP Trust  -    10,000

Loans to employees 1,62,21,340  1,12,06,540

Prepaid expenses 54,27,096  44,58,606

Advance tax (net of provisions) 87,20,254   -   

 11,70,87,630  5,30,46,169 

 2.17 Other current assets

(Unsecured, considered good)    

Security deposits towards borrowings* 50,00,000  62,50,000

Interest accrued but not due on loan portfolio 7,95,22,567  3,80,50,338

Interest accrued on fixed deposits 4,76,79,716  4,01,32,944

Discount on issue of debentures  13,05,475  13,09,051

Unamortised processing fee 3,53,26,537  3,95,76,202

 16,88,34,295  12,53,18,535

* Represents deposit maintained as cash collateral against term loan availed.

 2.18 Revenue from operations

Interest income on loan portfolio 2,115,883,800 1,121,924,736

Income from securitised portfolio 77,308,745 54,397,729

Income from business correspondence portfolio 90,871,973 23,244,888

Processing fee on loan portfolio 102,174,219 55,307,001

 2,386,238,737 1,254,874,354

 2.19 Other income

Interest on fixed deposits 131,281,439 87,339,299

Performance based grant - 602,250

Dividend income from current investments 4,692,425 2,076,650

Interest on staff loan 563,818 414,710

Miscellaneous income 15,065,584 4,311,516

 151,603,266 94,744,425
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 2.20 Operating expenses    

Rent (refer note 2.32) 3,68,86,758  2,19,17,143

Legal and professional charges  1,89,96,539  1,34,48,630

Travelling expenses* 2,49,44,264  1,40,57,134

Printing and stationery 1,19,28,329  89,56,123

Communication expenses 1,98,76,483  1,03,95,001

Credit bureau expenses 31,18,308  14,62,215

Power and fuel 56,41,900  26,69,924

Contingent provision against standard assets (refer note 2.25)# 7,38,50,205  3,97,90,875

Provision on non performing assets (refer note 2.25)# 1,59,68,297  13,49,154

Office maintenance 80,55,356  46,60,390

Software charges 1,88,26,919  1,09,62,629

 23,80,93,358  12,96,69,218 

  * Net of ` Nil (previous year: `370,000) grant received.    

# Includes the loan portfolio written off amounting to `3,048,164 (previous year: 222,619) 

 2.21 Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus 45,34,10,217  25,28,41,404

Contribution to provident and other funds 3,05,66,425  1,80,87,437

Employee compensation towards ESOP

and Sweat Equity shares  1,74,93,691  13,52,250

Staff welfare expenses 1,05,18,148  73,03,245

 51,19,88,481  27,95,84,336 

 2.22 Finance costs

Interest on borrowings 73,24,00,268  41,17,84,044

Other borrowing costs 6,49,99,524  3,44,21,271

Interest on non-convertible debentures 31,89,89,824  20,45,24,055

 1,11,63,89,616  65,07,29,370 

 2.23 Other expenses

Repairs and maintenance 53,82,817  42,91,102

Contribution towards Corporate Social Responsibilities

(refer note 2.42) 1,22,22,966  52,94,832

Subscription and membership expenses 26,37,009  13,62,318

Recruitment expenses 75,70,549  1,80,182

Loss on account of theft and fraud 2,73,400  3,00,000

Loss on sale of fixed assets 25,496  43,114

Insurance 24,29,150  16,88,749

Director sitting fees 4,82,050  25,000

Miscellaneous expenses 74,12,505  38,93,239

 3,84,35,942 1,70,78,536 
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2.24 The members of the Company in extraordinary general meeting held on 30 March 2016, have 

passed resolution to convert the Company into public company and the Company is yet to file 

the requisite form with Ministry of Company Affairs to effect the conversion of Company from 

private to public limited company.

2.25 Provision/for outstanding loan portfolio

 Asset classification As at 31 March 2016 As at 31 March 2015

  Loan Portfolio Provision  Loan Portfolio Provision

 Standard portfolio 11,993,067,241 144,392,018 6,232,200,986 70,541,813

 Sub Standard portfolio 11,618,686 5,809,343 1,445,887 722,943

 Doubtful portfolio 8,459,944 8,459,944 626,211 626,211

 Loss portfolio - - - -

 Total 12,013,145,871 158,661,305 6,234,273,084 71,890,967

 The movement in provision during the year is explained below:

 Particulars For the year ended 31 March 2016 For the year ended 31 March 2015

  Standard Substandard Total Standard Substandard Total

  portfolio & Doubtful  portfolio & Doubtful 

   portfolio  portfolio  

 Opening 70,541,813 1,349,154 71,890,967 30,869,920 1,03,637 30,973,557

 Additions/reversals,

 net 73,850,205 15,968,297 89,818,502 39,790,875 1,349,154 41,140,029

 Written off - (3,048,164) (3,048,164) (118,982) (103,637) (222,619)

 Closing 144,392,018 14,269,287 158,661,305 70,541,813 1,349,154 71,890,967

2.26 Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities), Net

 Particulars As at 31 March 2016 As at 31 March 2015

 Deferred tax liabilities comprises:

 Depreciation and amortization 1,470,076 -

 Deferred tax liabilities 1,470,076 -

 Deferred tax assets comprises: (refer note below)

 Provision on standard assets 1,470,076 -

 Depreciation and amortization - 371,266

 Deferred tax assets  1,470,076 371,266

 Deferred tax assets / (liabilities), net - 371,266

Note: As a matter of prudence, the Company has restricted deferred tax asset on the provisions 

made towards standard assets to the extent of deferred tax liability.
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2.27 In the previous year, pursuant to the notification of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the 

Act"), by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs effective 01 April 2014, the management had internally 

reassessed and changed, wherever necessary the useful lives to compute depreciation, to 

conform to the requirements of the Act. Consequently, the carrying amount as at 01 April 2014 is 

being depreciated over the revised remaining useful life of the asset. The carrying value of 

tangible assets of `408,320 with nil revised remaining useful life as at 01 April 2014 is reduced 

from the surplus as at such date. Further, had the Company continued with the previously 

assessed useful lives, charge for depreciation for the year ended 31 March 2015 would have 

been lower by `2,963,849 and the profit before tax would have been higher by such amount for 

the year ended 31 March 2015.

2.28 Earnings per share

 Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

  31 March 2016 31 March 2015

 a) Basic

 Profit after tax 368,051,810              160,203,969

 Less:  Dividend on 12% cumulative non-convertible

 preference shares and tax thereon 3,710,117 5,269,204

 Adjusted net profit for the year 364,341,693 154,934,765

 Weighted average number of equity shares

 outstanding during the year - Basic 41,369,910 29,446,489

 b) Diluted

 Adjusted net profit for the year 364,341,693 154,934,765

 Add: Interest expense on non-redeemable, mandatorily

 and fully convertible debentures (net of tax) 39,964 11,418

 Adjusted net profit for the year 364,381,657 154,946,183

 Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding

 during the year - Basic 41,369,910 29,446,489

 Add: Weighted average number of potential equity 

 shares on account of employee stock options 942,311 1,073,500

 Add: Weighted average number of equity shares on 

 account of 0.01% non-redeemable, mandatorily and 

 fully convertible debentures assuming 9 debentures will

 get converted into one equity shares - refer note 2.3 6,727,000 1,932,532

 Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding

 during the year - Diluted 49,039,221 32,452,521

 Earnings per share

 Basic - par value of `10 each 8.81 5.26

 Diluted - par value of `10 each 7.43 4.77
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2.28 Employee stock options 

The Company has formulated an Employees Stock Option Scheme to be administered through a 

Trust. The scheme provides that subject to continued employment with the Company the employees 

are granted an option to acquire equity shares of the Company that may be exercised within a 

specified period.

The Company formed Utkarsh ESOP Welfare Trust to issue ESOPs to employees of the Company as 

per Employee Stock Option Scheme. The Company has given interest and collateral free loan to the 

trust, to provide financial assistance to purchase equity shares of the Company under such schemes. 

The Company has allotted 343,507 equity shares of `10 each and 856,493 equity shares of `10 each in 

the years ended 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2013 respectively. The trust holds these shares for the 

benefit of the employees and issues them to the eligible employees as per the recommendation of 

the compensation committee. The Trust in turn allots the shares to employees on exercise of their 

right against cash. The compensation costs of stock options granted to employees are accounted by 

the company using intrinsic value method. 

The Trust does not have any transactions/activities other than those mentioned above, hence it is 

treated as a part of the Company and gets consolidated with the books of the Company. Accordingly, 

during the year the Company has reduced the shares allotted to ESOP trust amounting `9,423,110 

(previous year: `10,735,000) from the share capital and `9,442,228 (previous year: `9,940,319) from 

the share premium.

The options vested shall be exercised within a period of 24 months from the date of vesting. The plan 

shall be administered, supervised and implemented by the Compensation Committee under the 

policy and frame work laid down by the Board of Directors of the Company in accordance with the 

authority delegated to the Compensation Committee in this regard from time to time.

These options shall vest on graded basis as follows:

 On completion of 1 year 25%

 On completion of 2 years 25%

 On completion of 3 years 25%

 On completion of 4 years 25%

 Stock option activity under ESOP Plan 2010 is as below:

 Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

  31 March 2016  31 March 2015

 Number of equity shares:

 Outstanding at the beginning of the year 408,875 497,750

 Granted during the year 289,150 -

 Forfeited during the year 37,675 40,125

 Exercised during the year 131,189 48,750

 Outstanding at the end of year 529,161 408,875

 Exercisable at the end of year 334,162 83,250
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The Company calculates the compensation cost based on the intrinsic value method, wherein the 

excess of Fair value of underlying equity shares as on the date of the grant over the exercise price of 

the options given to employees under the ESOP schemes of the Company, is recognised as 

compensation cost and amortised over the vesting period. (Refer note 2.2)

2.30 Employee benefit plans

 a) Defined benefit plans 

 Gratuity: The Company makes annual contribution to a Gratuity Fund administered by trustees 

and managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC).  Every employee is entitled to a 

benefit equivalent to 15 days salary last drawn for each completed year of service in line with the 

payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.  The same is payable at the time of separation from the Company 

or retirement, whichever is earlier.

Defined benefit obligation

Particulars As at As at

  31 March 2016 31 March 2015

Opening defined benefit obligation 11,288,289 6,002,590

Current service cost 6,950,860 4,382,537

Interest cost 880,487 540,233

Actuarial gain/(loss) (473,074) 362,929

Benefits paid (219,750) -

Closing defined benefit obligation 18,426,812 11,288,289

Changes in the fair value of plan assets

Particulars As at As at

  31 March 2016 31 March 2015

Value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 14,636,791       7,196,587

Expected return on plan assets 1,319,928         699,037

Contributions 102,485       6,741,167

Benefits paid (219,750)                 -   

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 15,839,454     14,636,791

Amounts recognized in the balance sheet

Projected benefit obligation at the end of the year 18,426,812 11,288,289

Fair value of plan assets at end of the year 15,839,454 14,636,791

Net liability/(asset) 2,587,358 (3,348,502)
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Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

  31 March 2016 31 March 2015

Current service cost 6,950,860       4,382,537

Interest cost 880,487         540,233

Expected return on plan assets (1,319,928)        (699,037)

Net actuarial (gain)/loss recognized in the year (473,074) 362,929

Amount included in "Employee benefits expense" 6,038,345 4,586,662

Assumptions: 2015-2016 2014-2015

Discount rate  7.9% 7.8%

Expected return on plan assets  8% 8%

Salary escalation rate 6% 6%

Category of plan assets

Particulars As at As at

  31 March 2016 31 March 2015

Insurer managed funds 15,839,454 14,636,791

Discount rate: The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government 

securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations. 

Salary escalation rate: The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into account 

the inflation, seniority, promotion

a) Defined contribution plans

Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss towards

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

  31 March 2016 31 March 2015

Provident fund 29,271,688 17,099,688

Employee state insurance 1,294,737 987,749

2.31 Segmental reporting

 a) Business Segment

 The Company operates in a single reportable segment i.e. micro lending to members, who have 

similar risk and returns. Accordingly, there is no reportable segment to be disclosed as required 

by Accounting Standard 17 'Segment Reporting'.

 b) Geographical segment:

 During the year under report, the Company has engaged in its business primarily within India. 

The conditions prevailing in India being uniform, no separate geographical disclosure is 

considered necessary.
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2.32 Operating leases

 Lease payments made under cancellable operating lease amounting to `36,886,758 (previous 

year: `21,917,143) disclosed as rent and the same have been recognised as an expense in the  

Statement of Profit and Loss. 

2.33 As required in terms of circular RBI//2012-13/170DNBS. PD. No. 301/3.10.01/2012-13 dated 21 

August 2012:

Particulars Number / Amount in `

 31 March 2016 31 March 2015

1. Number of Special Purpose Vehicles (SPVs) sponsored   

by the Company for securitisation/bilateral transactions 7 7

2. Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the 

SPVs/assignees sponsored by the Company# 1,257,624,582 715,659,009

3. Total amount of exposures retained by the Company to 

comply with MRR as on the date of balance sheet

a) Off-balance sheet exposures - -

* First loss - -

* Others - -

b) On-balance sheet exposures - -

* First loss 145,783,641 79,067,863

* Others 141,674,749 39,809,454

4. Amount of exposures to securitisation transactions other

than MRR - -

a) Off-balance sheet exposures  -  -

i) Exposure to own securitizations  -  -

* First loss  -  -

* loss  -  -

ii) Exposure to third party securitizations  -  -

* First loss  -  -

* Others  -  -

b) On-balance sheet exposures  -  -

i) Exposure to own securitizations  -  -

* First loss  -  -

* Others  -  -

ii) Exposure to third party securitizations

* First loss  -  -

* Others  -  -

# the above information has been prepared based on the confirmations received from certain SPVs 

and other information available with the company.
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2.34 Following disclosures is made in accordance with RBI circular no 

DBOD.NO.BP.BC.60/21.04.048/2005-06 dated 01 February 2006.

 Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended

  31 March 2016  31 March 2015

 Total number of loans securitized  88,078 57,686 

 Total book value of loans securitized 1,048,199,999 607,900,000 

 Book value of loan securitized including 

 loans placed as collateral  1,171,748,500 637,395,005

 Sale consideration 1,048,199,999 607,900,000 

 Gain on securitization (Net of expenses) - -

 Outstanding credit enhancement  201,723,310 97,103,839

2.35 Contingent liabilities:

a) Guarantees given on assigned portfolio

  31 March 2016 31 March 2015

S.No Particulars Purchases Contingent FLDG % Purchases Contingent FLDG %

   Consideration Liability  Consideration Liability

 1 SOSEC II                    -                    -              -    91,672,235 11,459,029 12.50%*

 2 SOSEC III 293,100,000 34,592,254 10.00%* 293,100,000 34,592,254 10.00%*

 3 SOSEC IV 218,600,000 23,000,000 10.00%* 218,600,000 23,000,000 10.00%*

 4 SOSEC V 96,200,000 10,016,580 10.00%* 96,200,000 10,016,580 10.00%*

 5 SOSEC VI 520,200,000 57,174,784 10.00%*   

 6 SOSEC VII 528,000,000 21,000,023 3.50%*

  Total: 1,656,100,000 145,783,641   699,572,235 79,067,863

 * of pool principal

Note: Apart from the above FLDGs, contingent liability also includes over collateralization 

amount of `141,674,749 (previous year: `39,809,454)

a) The Company has entered into an Arrangement with the IndusInd Bank towards rendering of 

financial services and accordingly has given guarantees towards loans referred by the 

Company. Total guarantee given amounting to `196,889,887 (Previous Year: `49,646,664) 

towards the loans given based on the Company's reference and outstanding as at 31 March 

2016 amounting to `1,312,599,249 (Previous Year: `330,977,757). The guarantee is provided 

by way of fixed deposits and performance guarantee.
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2.36 Details of pending litigations:

 a)  As at 31 March 2016

Particulars Amount Treatment in Financial Statement

Proceedings by Company 2,113,765 An amount of `143,143 has been recovered in earlier 

against theft  years and `1,970,622 is yet to be recovered. The total  

  unrecovered amount is written off in earlier years.

b) As at 31 March 2015

Particulars Amount Treatment in Financial Statement

Proceedings by Company 1,840,365 An amount of `143,143 has been recovered in earlier  

against theft  years and `1,697,222 is yet to be recovered. The total 

  unrecovered amount is written off.

2.37 Related party disclosure

a) List of related parties

 Sl. No. Relationship Name of the parties 

 i. Enterprise having significant influence  CDC Group Plc

  over the Company 

 ii. Enterprise where KMP exercise  Samutkarsh Welfare Services (registered

  significant influence under Section 25 of the Companies Act, 1956) 

 iii. Enterprise where significant influence Utkarsh ESOP Welfare Trust

  exists 

b) Key managerial personnel  

i. Govind Singh  - Managing Director and CEO

ii. Trilok Nath Shukla - Whole Time Director

iii. Abhisheka Kumar - Chief Financial Officer

iv. Neeraj Kumar Tiwari - Company Secretary
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Related party transactions

    31 March 2016 31 March 2015

 Sl. Name of the  Nature of  Transactions Receivable/ Transactions Receivable/

 No. Related Party  Transaction  (Payable)  (Payable)

           

1 Utkarsh ESOP Recovery of 1,829,982 18,855,337 620,000 20,685,319

 Welfare Trust advance given,

  net 

2 Samutkarsh Welfare Contribution  12,222,966 (120,582) 4,370,000 -

 Services towards CSR

  activities 

3 Samutkarsh Welfare Purchase of 44,800 - 170,400 -

 Services Solar lamps 

4 Samutkarsh Welfare Loan given - - 10,730,000 -

 Services

5 Samutkarsh Welfare Interest  - - 54,790

 Services received

6 CDC Group Plc Issue of equity - - 342,870,000 -

  shares

7 CDC Group Plc Issue of CCDs - - 317,130,000 -

8 CDC Group Plc Interest on  31,713 41,183 9,470 9,470

  CCDs

9 Govind Singh Issue of equity  9,742,204 - - -

  shares including 

  securities 

  premium 

10 Govind Singh* Remuneration 19,201,991 - 5,439,666 - 

  paid 

11 Trilok Nath Shukla** Remuneration  2,958,061 - 2,423,736 -

  paid 

12 Abhisheka Kumar** Remuneration  3,177,108 - 2,606,568 -

  paid 

13 Neeraj Kumar Tiwari** Remuneration

  paid 221,322 - 70,929

 *Managerial Remuneration includes the compensation cost on account of issue of Sweat

 Equity shares amounting to `12,537,580.

 **Managerial Remuneration excludes the cost accounted under Employee Stock Option Plan.  



2.38 Terms of the secured / unsecured borrowings

 Nature of Amount Outstanding as at Amount Outstanding as at First Terms of

 Facility  31 March 2016 31 March 2015 Repayment Repayment

     Date

 Redeemable transferable non-convertible debentures ("NCD")*

NCD 1 160,000,000 - - 160,000,000 30-Aug-16 1 Bullet 

      Repayment

NCD 2 - - 240,000,000 - 20-Dec-15 1 Bullet

      Repayment

NCD 3 - 300,000,000 - 300,000,000 25-Oct-19 1 Bullet

      Repayment

NCD 4 - 298,000,000 - 298,000,000 13-May-17 Repayable in

      2 installments

      `7.45 crore

      payable on

      13 May 17; 

      `22.35 crore 

      payable on

      13 Nov 17

NCD 5 174,000,000 174,000,000 - 348,000,000 15-Dec-16 Repayable in

      2 installments

      `17.40 crore 

      payable on

      15 Dec 16;

      `17.40 crore

      payable on

      15 Jun 17

NCD 6 - 392,000,000 - 392,000,000 17-Sep-20 1 Bullet 

      Repayment

NCD 7 - 500,000,000 - - 22-Feb-21 1 Bullet 

      Repayment

NCD 8 - 750,000,000 - - 17-Mar-21 1 Bullet 

      Repayment

NCD 9 - 660,000,000 - - 27-Nov-21 1 Bullet 

      Repayment

NCD 10 - 385,550,000 - - 13-Sep-19 1 Bullet 

      Repayment

Total (A) 334,000,000 3,459,550,000 240,000,000 1,498,000,000

*Non-convertible debentures have an exclusive first ranking charge by way of hypothecation over 

loan receivables / book debts present and future and fixed deposit lien marked with bank.

Current Non-Current Current Non-Current 

100
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B. Secured term loan ( TL) from Banks #

TL 1 - - 13,636,364 - 30-Jun-13 Quarterly / 11

TL 2 5,454,547 - 7,272,724 5,454,548 31-May-14 Quarterly / 11

TL 3 - - 33,320,000 - 31-Jul-13 Monthly / 30

TL 4 18,181,816 18,181,822 13,636,362 36,371,642 30-Sep-15 Quarterly / 11

TL 5 39,552,392 39,552,398 20,000,000 80,000,000 30-Nov-15 Quarterly / 10

TL 6 - - 10,416,654 - 30-Sep-13 Monthly / 24

TL 7 - - 50,000,008 - 30-Apr-14 Monthly / 24

TL 8 116,640,035 - 99,999,996 100,000,004 30-Apr-15 Monthly / 24

TL 9 - - 16,664,000 - 10-Apr-13 Monthly / 36

TL 10 33,300,331 16,666,670 33,333,332 50,000,002 31-Dec-14 Quarterly / 12

TL 11 66,666,664 66,666,672 66,666,664 133,333,336 30-Jun-15 Quarterly / 12

TL 12 - - 28,571,000 - 14-Jul-13 Monthly / 21

TL 13 - - 104,761,900 - 01-Jun-14 Monthly / 21

TL 14 285,800,241 - 214,285,716 285,714,525 01-Jul-15 Monthly / 21

TL 15 - - 7,142,855 - 28-Dec-13 Quarterly / 7

TL 16 18,181,688 - 18,181,820 18,181,815 30-Sep-14 Quarterly / 11

TL 17 32,727,274 32,727,274 24,545,454 65,454,546 30-Sep-15 Quarterly / 11

TL 18 - - 36,363,636 - 30-Sep-13 Quarterly / 11

TL 19 18,333,303 - 20,000,004 18,333,327 30-Sep-14 Monthly / 30

TL 20 36,363,637 - 36,363,636 36,363,637 26-Sep-14 Quarterly / 11

TL 21 18,181,820 18,181,815 13,636,365 36,363,635 30-Sep-15 Quarterly / 11

TL 22 - - 40,000,000 - 30-Jun-14 Quarterly / 5

TL 23 57,142,860 - 114,285,712 57,142,860 31-Mar-15 Quarterly / 7

TL 24 42,857,141 - 57,142,857 42,857,143 30-Jun-15 Quarterly / 7

TL 25 - - 2,777,778 - 30-Nov-13 Monthly / 18

TL 26 20,833,343 - 50,000,000 20,833,333 30-Sep-14 Monthly / 24

TL 27 54,999,996 9,166,674 45,833,330 64,166,670 30-Jun-15 Monthly / 24

TL 28 - - 21,550,000 - 03-Apr-14 Monthly / 15
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TL 29 59,999,122 - 90,000,000 59,998,822 31-Jul-15 Monthly / 15

TL 30 - - 85,714,287 - 25-Jul-14 Monthly / 21

TL 31 28,571,430 - 57,142,848 28,571,440 26-Jan-15 Monthly / 21

TL 32 - - 37,500,000 - 30-Jun-14 Quarterly / 8

TL 33 - - 14,285,714 - 30-Sep-14 Quarterly / 7

TL 34 - - 87,750,000 - 31-Jan-15 Monthly / 12

TL 35 100,000,001 - 99,999,996 100,000,004 26-Apr-15 Monthly / 24

TL 36 - - 28,571,429 - 12-Feb-14 Quarterly / 7

TL 37 - - 142,857,143 - 25-Aug-14 Quarterly / 7

TL 38 57,142,860 - 114,285,712 57,142,860 31-Jan-15 Quarterly / 7

TL 39 75,000,000 - 75,000,000 75,000,000 09-Jun-15 Quarterly / 8

TL 40 - - 10,000,000 - 25-Jun-13 Quarterly / 10

TL 41 - - 20,000,000 - 22-Dec-13 Quarterly / 10

TL 42 16,664,757 16,666,664 16,666,668 33,333,332 09-Jun-15 Quarterly / 12

TL 43 - - 110,000,000 - 05-Dec-14 Quarterly / 4

TL 44 - - 55,000,000 - 09-Dec-15 1 Bullet 

      repayment

TL 45 - - 55,000,000 - 11-Mar-16 1 Bullet 

      repayment

TL 46 - - 120,000,000 - 19-Jun-15 Quarterly / 4

TL 47 - - 16,666,663 - 25-Mar-14 Monthly / 18

TL 48 - - 8,333,329 - 26-Jan-14 Monthly / 18

TL 49 - - 10,000,001 - 05-Jul-14 Monthly / 18

TL 50 - - 113,333,335 18,888,892 24-Dec-14 Monthly / 18

TL 51 - - 19,999,992 10,000,008 27-Apr-15 Monthly / 18

TL 52 36,400,000 54,500,000 - - 20-Feb-16 Quarterly / 11

TL 53 36,666,674 63,333,326 - - 31-May-16 Monthly / 30

TL 54 171,428,571 228,571,429 - - 08-Aug-16 Quarterly / 7

TL 55 75,000,000 62,500,000 - - 16-Feb-16 Quarterly / 24

TL 56 50,000,000 100,000,000 - - 31-Aug-16 Quarterly / 9

 Nature of Amount Outstanding as at Amount Outstanding as at First Terms of

 Facility  31 March 2016 31 March 2015 Repayment Repayment

     DateCurrent Non-Current Current Non-Current 
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TL 57 200,000,003 99,999,996 - - 03-Apr-16 Monthly / 18

TL 58 149,999,997 112,500,000 - - 31-Jan-16 Quarterly / 8

TL 59 200,000,004 116,666,661 - - 15-Nov-15 Monthly / 24

TL 60 50,000,004 45,833,329 - - 15-Mar-16 Monthly / 24

TL 61 142,856,140 71,428,575 - - 17-Feb-16 Quarterly / 7

TL 62 30,000,000 - - - 31-Jul-16 1 Bullet 

      Repayment

TL 63 110,000,000 - - - 07-Sep-16 1 Bullet 

      Repayment

TL 64 90,000,000 - - - 31-Dec-15 Quarterly / 4

TL 65 30,000,000 - - - 29-Sep-16 1 Bullet 

      Repayment

TL 66 57,142,857 28,571,429 - - 29-Jan-16 Monthly / 21

TL 67 74,999,993 75,000,000 - - 30-Apr-16 Monthly / 24

Total (B) 2,707,089,501 1,276,714,733 2,588,495,284 1,433,506,381

C. Secured term loan (TL) from financial institutions#

TL 1 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 2,000,000 01-Oct-13 Annual / 5

TL 2 16,666,678 - 49,999,992 16,666,680 10-Jul-15 Monthly / 24

TL 3 88,800,000 44,600,000 66,600,000 133,400,000 10-Jul-15 Monthly / 27

TL 4 333,333,334 666,666,666 - - 31-Jul-16 Six monthly / 6

TL 5 333,333,334 666,666,666 - - 31-Jul-16 Six monthly / 6

TL 6 99,996,000 400,004,000 - - 10-Oct-16 Monthly / 30

Total (C) 873,129,346 1,778,937,332 117,599,992 152,066,680  

D. Unsecured loans from financial institutions

TL 1 - - 28,500,000 - 10-Oct-15 Monthly / 3

TL 2 - - 21,500,000 - 10-Oct-15 Monthly / 6

Total (D) - - 50,000,000 -  

E.  Unsecured loans from financial institutions (Sub-ordinated debt)

TL 1 - 100,000,000 - 100,000,000 10-Oct-20 Monthly / 6

Total (E) - 100,000,000 - 100,000,000  

 Nature of Amount Outstanding as at Amount Outstanding as at First Terms of

 Facility  31 March 2016 31 March 2015 Repayment Repayment

     DateCurrent Non-Current Current Non-Current 
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F.  Secured term loan (TL) from others#

TL 1 8,333,333 - 16,666,667 8,333,333 31-Jan-14 Six monthly / 6

TL 2 16,666,667 16,666,667 16,666,667 33,333,335 30-Jun-15 Quarterly / 12

TL 3 - - 5,569,327 - 28-Oct-13 Monthly / 24

TL 4 - - 6,250,007 - 31-Jul-13 Monthly / 24

TL 5 8,333,338 - 25,000,000 8,333,338 30-Aug-14 Monthly / 24

TL 6 - - 5,833,000 - 08-Sep-12 Quarterly / 12

TL 7 8,333,000 - 33,332,000 8,333,000 27-Sep-13 Quarterly / 12

TL 8 100,000,000 100,000,000 - 200,000,000 24-Aug-16 2 Installment in 

      every 18 

      months

TL 9 55,212,202 - 72,883,212 55,212,202 01-Dec-14 Monthly / 24

TL 10 87,500,002 262,500,000 - - 23-Feb-17 Annual / 4

TL 11 60,000,000 80,000,000 - - 20-Feb-16 Monthly / 30

TL 12 100,000,000 200,000,000 - - 27-Apr-16 Quarterly / 12

TL 13 - 317,200,000 - - 15-Sep-18 Semi Annual / 8

TL 14 90,909,080 128,787,888 - - 31-Dec-15 Monthly / 33

Total (F) 535,287,635 1,105,154,555 182,200,880 313,545,208  

#All term loans are secured by way of exclusive charge on the standard assets portfolio receivables 

pertaining to micro credit loans and cash collateral as per the respective agreements.

G. Interest rates on the above debentures, term and other loans fall in between a minimum of 

3.5% and a maximum of 16.00%.

H. Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings 

Particulars ISIN 31 March 2016 31 March 2015

(a) MFI Grading  ICRA M1 ICRA M2+

(b) Non-Convertible 

Debentures NCD 1  INE396P07019 ICRA BBB- ICRA BBB-

NCD 2* INE396P07043 ICRA BBB- ICRA BBB-

NCD 3 INE396P07027 ICRA BBB- ICRA BBB-

NCD 4 INE396P07035 ICRA BBB- ICRA BBB-

 Nature of Amount Outstanding as at Amount Outstanding as at First Terms of

 Facility  31 March 2016 31 March 2015 Repayment Repayment

     DateCurrent Non-Current Current Non-Current 
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Particulars ISIN  31 March 2016  31 March 2015

NCD 5 INE396P07050 ICRA BBB ICRA BBB

NCD 6 INE396P07068 ICRA BBB ICRA BBB

NCD 7 INE396P07100   ICRA BBB+ -

NCD 8 INE396P07118 CARE A- -

NCD 9 INE396P07092 ICRA BBB+ -

NCD 10 INE396P07084  CARE A- -

(c) Commercial Paper ^  CARE A1 -

(d) Long Term Bank Loans  CARE A- ICRA BBB+

(e) Securitization

SOSEC I - ICRA BBB+

SOSEC II - ICRA BBB+

SOSEC III* ICRA A- ICRA A-

SOSEC IV ICRA A- ICRA A-

SOSEC V ICRA A- ICRA A-

SOSEC VI ICRA A -

SOSEC VII ICRA A -

* Repaid during the year

^ Issued and redeemed during the year.

2.39  Terms of short term borrowings

 Following are the details of certain pertinent terms and conditions of short term borrowings:

Nature of Facility Outstanding as at  Outstanding as at Terms

 31 March 2016 31 March 2015 

Cash credit facility  - 180,000,000 Refer note 1

Cash credit facility  - - Refer note 2

Overdraft facility - - Refer note 3

Note 1: The Cash credit facility with financials institution was fully secured by way of exclusive 

charge on the loan assets / book debts created out of the loan funds and by way of fixed 

deposits pledged amounting to `18 million. Cash credit carried interest rate of 16.5% and repaid 

on 25 August 2015.

Note 2: Cash credit facility with bank for `150 million is fully secured by way of exclusive charge 

on the loan assets / book debts and by way of fixed deposits pledged amounting to `15 million. 

Cash credit carry interest rate of 1.75% above base rate and the facility is available till 31 

December 2016 and renewable annually.

Note 3: Company has overdraft facility with banks amounting to `151.35 million and is fully 

secured by way of fixed deposits pledged amounting to `166.43 million. Overdraft carry interest 

ranging 8.50% to 10.75%. 
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2.40 2.37 Auditors remuneration (Included in legal and professional fee, excluding service tax)

 Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

  31 March 2016 31 March 2015

 Audit fees 1,150,000 1,150,000

 Limited review 250,000 250,000

 Certification 200,000 200,000

 Reimbursement of expenses 108,910 86,410

 Total 1,708,910 1,686,410

2.41 Amounts payable to Micro and Small enterprises

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an Office Memorandum dated 

26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in 

their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allotted 

after filing of the Memorandum. Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable 

to such enterprises as at 31 March 2016 has been made in the financial statements based on 

information received and available with the Company. Further in the view of the management, 

the impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the 

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 is not expected to be material. 

The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier under the said Act.

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

 31 March 2016 31 March 2015

The principal amount and the interest due thereon 

remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of 

each accounting year. Nil Nil

The amount of interest paid by the Company along

with the amounts of the payment made to the 

supplier beyond the appointed day during the year. Nil Nil

The amount of interest due and payable for the 

period of delay in making payment (which have 

been paid but beyond the appointed day during 

the year) but without adding the interest specified

under this act. Nil Nil

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid

at the end of the year; and Nil Nil

The amount of further interest remaining due and

payable even in the succeeding years, until such date

when the interest due as above are actually paid to

the small enterprise. Nil Nil
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2.42 As per Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, the Company has formed a CSR Committee of 

the Board of Directors. The CSR Committee has also approved a CSR Policy where certain focus 

areas out of list of activities covered in Schedule VII of the Companies Act 2013, has been 

identified.

a) Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year `3,071,882 (previous 

year: `1,448,619).

b) Amount spent during the year:

 S. No. Particulars In cash Yet to be paid in cash  Total     

 i) Construction/acquisition of any asset Nil Nil Nil

 ii) On purposes other than (i) above 12,102,384 120,582 12,222,966  

c) Amount spent in the previous year:

 S. No. Particulars In cash Yet to be paid in cash  Total     

 i) Construction/acquisition of any asset Nil Nil Nil

 ii) On purposes other than  (i) above 4,370,000 - 4,370,000

2.43 Investments

(Figures in ` Crores)

 Sl. No   Particulars 2015-2016 2014-2015

 1)   Value of Investments      

  (i) Gross value of investments       

  (a) In India 11.26 0.1

   (b) Outside India               -              -

   (ii) Provision for depreciation    

   (a) In India               -              -

   (b) Outside India               -              -

   (iii) Net value of investments      

  (a) In India 11.26 0.1

   (b) Outside India               -              -

 2)   Movement of provisions held towards

   depreciation on investments      

  (i) Opening balance               -              -

   (ii) Add: Provisions made during the year               -              -

   (iii) Less: Write-off/ write-back of excess 

   provisions during the year               -              -

   (iv) Closing balance               -              -
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2.44 As required in terms of Reserve Bank of India guidelines

 a) Capital to Risk Asset Ratio (CRAR)

 Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

 i) CRAR % 20.68% 35.06%

ii) CRAR – Tier I Capital (%) 14.40% 22.17%

iii) CRAR – Tier II Capital (%) 6.28% 12.89%

iv) Amount of sub-ordinated debt raised as Tier II capital 100,000,000 100,000,000

v) Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments - -

 b) The Company has the following direct exposure to real estate sector:

 Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

 Residential Mortgages

Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property 20,163,304 Nil

that is or will be occupied by the borrower or that is rented 

 c) Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities:

(Figures in ` Lakhs)

Particulars 1 day to Over 1 Over 2 Over 3 Over 6 Over 1 Over 3 Over 5

(2015-16) 30/31 month months months months year years years

 days1 upto 2 upto 3 upto 6 upto 1 upto 3 upto

 month months months months year years 5 years  

Borrowings 2,030.82 1,969.28 2,737.57 9,001.39 11,331.84 12,767.15 7,500 -

from banks 

Market  578.21 329.06 454.92 7,178.41 8,883.56 30,306.92 19,236.50 7,393

Borrowings 

Advances 8,059.18 8,336.32 7,933.15 23,770.02 36,892.70 34,996.90 143.13 0.05

Deposits 5,767.53 9,192.20 247.30 919.19 3,087.52 5,546.17 - -

Investments 1,126.29 - - - - - - -
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Particulars 1 day to Over 1 Over 2 Over 3 Over 6 Over 1 Over 3 Over 5

(2014-15) 30/31 month months months months year years years

 days1 upto 2 upto 3 upto 6 upto 1 upto 3 upto

 month months months months year years 5 years  

Borrowings 852.26 1,314.11 3,592.75 6731.24 13,970.59 16,955.66  1000.00

from Banks 

Market  1,907.21 108.07 292.21 477.75 3,236.77 18,115.52 - -

Borrowings 

Advances  4,602.91 4,675.54 4,805.41 13,858.45 21,233.94 13,163.99 2.50 -

Deposits 3,068.62 5,791.00 6,430.47 2,755.42 2,226.38 5,296.98 - -

Investments  10.14 - - - - - - -

d) Details of assignment transactions undertaken 

 Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

  31 March 2016 31 March 2015

 No. of accounts - 19,445

 Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold - 219,325,231

 Aggregate consideration - 214,604,146

 Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts - -

 transferred in earlier years 

 Aggregate gain / loss over net book value - 6,245,176

e) Provision and contingency

 Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

  31 March 2016 31 March 2015

 Provisions for depreciation on Investment - -

 Provision towards NPA 15,968,297 1,349,154

 Provision made towards Income tax 242,725,202 104,775,598

 Provision for Standard Assets 73,850,205 39,790,875

f) Draw down from Reserves

 There has been no draw down from reserves during the year ended 31 March 2016 (previous 

 year: Nil).
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g) Concentration of Advances, Exposures and NPAs

(Amount in `crore)

 Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

 Concentration of Advances

 Total advances to twenty largest borrowers 1.01 0.51

 (%)of advances to twenty largest borrowers to total advances 0.07% 0.08%

 Concentration of Exposures

 Total exposure to twenty largest borrowers/customers 1.01 0.51

 (%)of exposure to twenty largest borrowers/customers to total exposure 0.07% 0.08%

 Concentration of NPAs

 Total exposure to top four NPA accounts 0.09 0.03

h) Sector wise Non-Performing Assets (NPA)

 Sl. No. Sector Percentage of NPAs to total advances in that sector

   2015-16 2014-15

 1 Agriculture & allied activities 0.06% 0.01%

 2 MSME 0.28% 0.06%

 3 Corporate borrowers 0.00% 0.00%

 4 Services 0.21% 0.04% 

 5 Unsecured personal loans 0.00% 0.00% 

 6 Auto loans 0.00% 0.00%

 7 Other personal loans 0.00% 0.00%

i) Movement in Non-Performing Asset (NPA)

  Particulars 2015-16 2014-15  

 i) Net NPA to net advances percentage 0.05% 0.01%

 ii) Movement of NPAs (Gross)

  a) Opening balance   2,072,098       199,506

  b) Additions during the year 21,054,696     1,976,229

  c) Reduction during the year   3,048,164       103,637

  d) Closing balance 20,078,630     2,072,098
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 iii) Movement of net NPAs

  a) Opening balance     722,944         95,869

  b) Additions during the year   5,086,399       627,075

  c) Reduction during the year               -                 -

  d) Closing balance   5,809,343       722,944

  iv) Movement of provisions for NPAs

  (excluding provisions on standard assets)  

  a) Opening balance   1,349,154       103,637

  b) Provisions made during the year 15,968,297     1,349,154

  c) Write off/ write back of excess provisions   3,048,164       103,637

  d) Closing balance 14,269,287     1,349,154 

j) Disclosure with respect to customer complaints

 Sl. No. Particulars Number of complaints

   2015-16 2014-15

 i No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year 52 12

 ii No. of complaints received during the year 4,916 2,088

 iii No. of complaints redressed during the year 4,426 2,048

 iv No. of complaints pending at the end of the year 542 52

k) Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the 

NBFC:

 The Company has not exceeded the prudential exposure limits during the financial year 

ended 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015. 

i) Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators

 Sl. No. Regulator Registration No. Date of Registration

 1. Ministry of Corporate Affairs U65191UP1990PTC045609 15-May-1990

 2. Reserve Bank of India B-07-00781 19-Mar-2010

m) Details of penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators

 No penalties has been imposed by RBI and other regulators on the Company during the 

financial year ended 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.
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n) Unsecured Advances

 The Company has not given any unsecured advances against intangible securities such as 

charge over the rights, licenses, authority, etc. during the financial year ended 31 March 

2016 and 31 March 2015

o) Details of non-performing financial assets purchased / sold

 The Company has not purchased/sold any non-performing financial assets during the 

financial year ended 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

p) Disclosure of frauds reported during the year ended 31 March 2016 vide DNBS. PD. CC No. 

256/03.10.042/2011-12 dated 2 March 2012

 Particulars Less than `1 Lakh `1 Lakh to `5 Lakh More than `5 Lakh

  No. of Value (`) No. of  Value (`) No. of  Value (`)

 accounts  accounts  accounts 

 A) Person involved

  Staff 8 108,861  - - - -

  Customers - - - - - -

  Staff and Customers - - - - - - 

 Total 8 108,861  - - - -

 B) Type of Fraud       

  Misappropriation and

Criminal Breach of Trust 8 108,861 - - - 

  Fraudulent Encashment/ 

manipulation of books of

accounts or through

fictitious accounts and

conversion of property - - - - -  

  Unauthorised credit

facilities extended for

reward or for illegal

gratification - -  - - - -

  Negligence and cash

shortages - - - - - 

  Cheating and forgery - - - - - 

  Irregularities in foreign

exchange transactions - - - - - -

  Any other type of fraud not

coming under the specific

heads as above - - - -  - -

  Total 8 108,861 - -  - - 

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company has not detected any fraud.
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2.45 Foreign currency exposure

 Hedged

 Particulars Purpose As at 31 March 2016 As at 31 March 2015

   Amount Amount  Amount Amount 

   (in US$) in INR (in US$) in INR 

 Currency Swap Full Hedge of external 5,000,000    317,200,000  - -

  commercial borrowing 

2.46 Derivative Instruments

 Particulars Purpose As at 31 March 2016 As at 31 March 2015

   Amount Amount  Amount Amount 

   (in US$) in INR (in US$) in INR 

 Currency Swap Full Hedge of external 5,000,000    317,200,000  - -

  commercial borrowing

2.47 Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified, where necessary, to conform to 

current year's classification.

 As per our report of even date attached

 for B S R & Associates LLP   for Utkarsh Micro Finance Private Limited 

 Chartered Accountants  C IN: U65191UP1990PTC045609

 ICAI Firm Registration No: 116231W/W-100024

 H Selva Thiraviam Govind Singh Trilok Nath Shukla

 Partner Managing Director & CEO Whole Time director

 Membership No. 200120 DIN: 02470880 DIN: 00473897

  

  Abhisheka Kumar Neeraj Kumar Tiwari

  Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

 Place: Hyderabad Place: New Delhi

 Date: 17 May 2016 Date: 17 May 2016   
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Our Lenders 

A) Public Sector Banks / DFIs

B)  Private Sector Banks

C)  Foreign Banks

Kotak Mahindra Bank

       SBM Bank (Mauritius Ltd)

OUR PARTNERS IN PROGRESS
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D)  Financial Institutions

E)  Foreign Institutional Investors

Our Collaborators

Capital

Credit Bureau Partners:Auditors:

Insurance:

Network Partner: System Partner: 

Maanaveeya Development
& Finance (Pvt) Ltd
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